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InNpus DYEING & MFG. Co. LIMITED

VISION

To be leading and diversified company, offering a wide range of

quality products and service.

MISSION

We aim to provide superior products, financial security, performance
and service quality that fully meet the needs of our customers and

maintain the financial strength of the company.




DIRECTORS' REVIEW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

The Directors of Indus Dyeing and Manufacturing (‘;nr.vt'|'1::4c1n'¢_.|Ir Limited are pleased to
present the Annual Report together with the audited Financial Statements for the year
ended June 30, 2014 before the Fifty Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Your Company earned post-tax profit of Rs 1,996 million as compared to Rs 2,547 million
for the comresponding period. During the period under review the sales increased fo Rs
24,034 million from Rs 20,022 million i.e 16.69% due to increase in capacity and
production of yarn along with the acquisition of a previous joint venture. However the
profit decreased due to decrease in yarn prices in the later part of the year, high cotton
prices and increase in power cost. The financial charges also increased due the capital
investment and additional requirement of working capital.

Earnings per share of the Company on a standalone basis were Rs. 65.72 per share as

compared to Rs.129.89 last year. The consolidated earnings per share were Rs. 110.47
per share as compared to Rs. 140.94 per share for last year.

The financial highlights of the Company-Consolidated are as under:

For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
{Rupees in 000)

Sales 24,034,425 20,022,197
Gross profit . 2,487,947 3,630,687
Other operating Income 222,332 22,395
 Profit for the year 1,996,643 2,547,734
Un-appropriated profit brought forward 3,733,735 2,181,358
Un-appropriated profit carried forward 5,443,438 3,733,735
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (net) Rs. 110.47 Rs. 140.96




BUSINESS SITUATION

The change In both the yarn market and manufacturing dynamics has necessitated
continuous rethinking of the business strategy of the Company to safeguard shareholder
interests. During the year under review Pakistan textile industry faced multiple issves.
China has slowed down their procurement of yarn from Pakistan. Also the import of yarn
from India increased the supply in local market; prices of yarn were coming down
resultantly. Appreciation in Pakistani Rupees has also affected the exporter profitability
during the year. The cost of production was higher due to the high cotion prices last
year as compared to previous year couvpled with the expensive utility supplies.

In accordance with the expansion plans, the installation of 24,000 spindles with
complete back process and power generation equipments has been done successfully
at Muzzafargarh Unit. The commercial production of about 16,800 spindles of this unit
was achieved in Nov-2013 and the remaining 7,200 spindles in March-2014.

During the year under review the company has increased stake in Indus Home Limited
to the extent of 100% (June 30, 2013; 50%). The 50% share capital was owned by West
Point Pakistan LLC which was acquired by the company at a total cost of USD 12 million
under the share purchase agreement dated November 8, 2013.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Slump prevails in demand of yarn in international market particularly In China, the
largest buyer of yarn, which will impact the prices. Cotton prices become steady as
compared to the last years which will help in recovering profits next year.

The nation’s acute energy crisis, especially in Punjab, continues to take its toll on the
economy as the energy dependent industiies continve to operate below capacity.
Power outages coupled with voldtile fuel prices have put pressures on the cost of
manvfacturing sector in the country.

Despite these challenging circumstances, the management is taking key initiatives to
curtail its overhead costs and material wastages, whilst Increasing production from last
year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The management of the Company is committed to good corporate governance and
compliance with best practices. The requirements of the Code of Corporate
Governance set out by the Karachi Stock Exchange and Lahore Stock Exchange in their
Listing Regulations have been duly complied with. A Statement to this effect is annexed
with the Report.




CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has adopted a Business Code of Conduct and all employees are aware of
and have signed off on this Statement. The Code of Conduct is rigorously followed
throughout the organization as all employees observe the rules of business conduct laid
down therein.

VISION AND MISSION

The statement reflecting the Vision and Mission of the Company Is annexed to the
report.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
It is cerified that:

(I) The financial statements together with notes thereon have been drawn up by
management in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984. These
statements present fairly the Company's state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes In equity.

(ii) The Company has maintained proper books of accounts.

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the
preparation of financial statements, and accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment.

(iv)International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in the preparation of financlal statements and there has been no
departure there from.

(v) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been eftectively
implemented and monitored.

(vi)The annual audited financial statements are circulated within four months of the
close of the financial year.

(vii) There are no significant doubts about the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern.

(viil) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate
governance, as detailed in the Stock Exchange Listing Regulations.




BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors has established an Audit Commiltee, in compliaonce with the
Code of Corporate Governance, which oversees Iinternal controls and compliance and
has been working efficiently since its inceplion. The Audit Commiitee reviewed the
quartery, half-yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board
and their publication. The Audit Committee had detailed discussions with the external
auditors on various issues, including their lefter to the management. The Audit
Committee also reviewed internal auditors’ findings and held separate meetings with
internal and external auditors as required under the Code of Corporate Governance.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the year ended June 30, 2014, a total of 6 meetings of the Board of Directors and
5 meetings of the Board Audit Committee were held. The position of attendance during
respective tenure was as follows:

Board Meetings Audit Committee
Meetings
Name of Director Held Altended Held Attended
1. Mian Muhammad Ahmed [ b - -
2. Mian Riaz Ahmed** b 4 5 4
3. Mr. Shahzad Ahmed [ [ - -
4, Mr. Naveed Ahmed b [ - -
5. Mr. Imran Ahmed* - - - -
&. Mr. Ifan Ahmed™* é 5 5 5
7. Mr. Kashif Riaz** & 4 5 4
8. Mr. Shahwaiz Ahmed é & - -
9. Mr. Shafqat Masood ] 6 - -
10. Mr. Farcoq Hassan [ [ - -
11. Sheikh Nishat Ahmed* & [ - -

*Mr. Imran Ahmed resigned from the Board on August 29, 2013. The casual vacancy
arises by his resignation was filled by appointing Sheikh Nishat Ahmed on the same
date.

** Members of the Board Audit Committee.




PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The statement reflecting the pattern of shareholding is annexed to the Report.

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA
summary of key operating and financial data for the last six financial years is attached
to this Report.

STATUTORY PAYMENTS

As on the date of closing, no government taxes, duties, levies and charges were
outstanding or overdue except for routine payments of various levies and amounts in
dispute pending decision in various appellate forums and the same have been
disclosed in the financial statements.

TRADING IN COMPANY SHARES

The Directors, CEQ, CFO and Company Secretary have not traded in Company shares
during the year.

DIVIDEND
The Company paid interim cash dividend 150'% i.e. Rs 15 per share during the year.

CERTIFICATE OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

It is confirmed that the transactions entered into with related parties have been ratified
by the Audit Commitiee and the Board and the Report provides information about the
amounts due from all related parties at the Balance Sheet date.

AUDITORS

The present auditors, M/s. Yousuf Adil Saleem & Co., Chartered Accountanis, whose
tenure finished on June 30, 2014, being eligible have offered themselves for
reappointment. The Audit Committee has recommended the appointment of M/s.
Yousuf Adil Saleem & Co., Chartered Accountants as the statutory auditors of the
Company for the year ending June 30, 2015.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors acknowledge the contribution of each and every employee of the
Company. We would like to express our thanks to our customers for the trust shown in
our products and the bankers for continued support to the Company. We are also
grateful to our shareholders for their confidence in our management.

Shahzad Ahmed NaveedAhmed

Chief Executive Director
Karachi: Octleber 03, 2014



Operating data
Tumover

Less : Commission expense

Sales { net)
Gross profit
Profit before tax
Profit after tax

Financial data
Gross assets employed

Retumn on equity
Current assets
Shareholders equity

Long term debts and deferred
liabilities

Current liabilities

Key ratios

Gross profit ratio

Net profit ratio

Debt / equity ratio

Current ratio

Earning per share { basic and diluted

Dividend { percentage )
- Cash

- Stock

- Specie dividend
Statistics

Production volume ( tons )

Key Operating and Financial Results.

2009

8,557,351
(87,1989)

8,470,152
1,134,109
273,693

191,300

7,131,702
7.72%

3,039,112

2,477,006

1,659,906

2984701

13.39%
2.24%
40 : 60

1.

10.58

15%

40,664

2010

11,022 484
(110,889)

10,911,595
2,539,455
1,996,637
1,858,465

6,940,121
43.12%

2,606,650

4,310,394

963,705

1,666,022

23.27%
17.03%
18: 82
1.56

102.83

50%

40,507

2011

18.454,163

{200,640)

18,253,523
2,897 663
2275270

2,131,260

7,810,067
34.03%

3,503,265

6,263,546

550,568

1,086,952

15.87%h

11.68%

08 : 92
ey |
117.92

150%

40,465

2012

15,282,814
(195,676)

15,087,138
2228151
1,416,285

1,252,047

10,255,698
17.72%
3,930,128
7.064,724

1,187,985

2,002,980

14.77%
8.30%
14: 86

1.86

69.27

350%

40,257

13
17,943 482

(331,466)

17,612,016
3,274,429
2,323,203

2,247 529

11315251
27.89%
4,849 357
8,416,927

802,608

2,095,716

18.59%

13.33%

08:91
23

129.89

100% Int

100 : 09

43,427

2014

18,849,796

(233,064)

18,616,732
2,052,954
1,058,747

1,187,803

16,124,208
12.74%
6,343,867
9,325,254

1,995,294

4,803,750

11.03%
6.38%
18 : B2

1.32

65.72

150% Int

50,785




Form 34

PATTERN OF HOLDING OF THE SHARES HELD BY THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING CO. LIMITED
AS AT JUNE 30, 2014

THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984 ( SECTION 236 )

No. of Shareholding Total
Shareholders From To Shares Held
1.266 1 100 42 D67
145 101 500 38,332
38 501 1,000 36,961
23 1,001 5,000 46,893
8 5,001 15,000 54 246
4 15.001 50,000 121,089
2 50,001 100,000 162,700
5 100,001 500,000 1,814,368
3 500,001 800,000 1,854,580
3 800,001 1,100,000 2973493
2 1,200,001 1,500,000 2852125
3 1,500,001 1,985,000 5,393 820
1 2,880,001 2,900,000 2,882 948
" 1,504 18,073,732
B Categories of shareholding |
Shareholders No. of Shares Held
Share Holders rercentage
Individuals 1.474 356,677 1.97%
Joint Stock Companies 7 467,347 2.59%
Financial Institutions 4 287 469 1.59%
Insurance Companies 1 448 605 2.47%
Mutual Fund 2 527,375 2.92%
Directors, CEQ their Spouses 16 15,988,259 8B .46%
& Minor Children
1,504 18,073,732 100.00%
I INDIVIDUALS [ 1,474 356,677
[JOINT STOCK COMPANIES ] 7
Treet Corporation Lid. 465,370
M.H Capital Fund Limited 10
Darzon Securities (Pvt) Lid. 5
Kamal Factory (Pvt) Ltd 1,400
5.H. Bukhari Securities {Pvt) Ltd 525
MCL Pre Securities (Pvt) Ltd 20
United Securities (Pvi) Ltd 17
467,347
| FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS | 4
National Bank of Pakistan 205
MNational Bank of Pakistan 267,362
Faysal Bank Lid. 6,285
Mational Investment Trust 13,527
287 469
[INSURANCE COMPANIES | 1
State Life Insurance Corp. of Pakistan 446,605
446,605
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| MUTUAL FUND | 2
CDC-Trustes National Investment (UNIT) Trust 525,295
MCBFSL-Trustee Pak Oman 2,080
527,375
[ Directors and their spouses ] 16
Mian Mohammad Ahmed 1,000,849
Mian Riaz Ahmed 1,387,765
Mr. Shahzad Ahmed 1,749,792
Mr. Naveed Ahmed 1,264,360
Mr. Kashif Riaz 2,882,948
Mr. Imran Ahmed 1,982,250
Mr. Irfan Ahmed 1,661,878
Mr. Shafgat Masood 39,785
Mr. Shahwaiz Ahmed 1,092
Mrs. Salma Jakeen 78,820
Mrs, Yasmeen Riaz 1,089,504
Mrs. Lozina Shahzad 779,818
Mrs. Shazia Naveed 883,140
Mrs. Fadia Kashif 549 467
Mrs. Tahia Imran 163,939
Mrs. Ayesha Irfan 472 852 15,988,259
18,073,732
| Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest in the company as at June 30, 2014 1

Mr. Kashif Riaz
Mr.Imran Ahmed

|_Holding | Percentage |

2,882,948
1,882,250

15.95
10.97

Detail of purchase / sale of shares by Directors, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit Department
Chief Finance Officer, Chief Executive Office and their spouses, minor children during 2013-2014

NAME

]

NIL

11

[Purchase | Sold |
NIL NIL




STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

The statement Is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (CCG) contalned in
the regulation No. 35 of the listing regulafions of Karachi Stock exchange Limited, for the purpose of
establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed company Is managed in compliance with
the best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the prnciples contained in the CCG in the following manner,

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

8)

7)

8)

7

The Company encourages the representafion of Independent non-execulive directors and
directors representing minerity Interest on its Board of Directors. Al present the board Includes:

Category Names

Independent Director Mr. Shelkh Nishat Ahmed

Executive Directors Mr. Shahzad Ahmed / Mr. Naveed Ahmed / Mr.
Shaofgat Masood .

Non-Execulive Directors Mian Mohammad Ahmed/ Mian Rlaz Ahmed /
Mr. Kashll Rlaz / Mr. Ifan Ahmed [/ Shawalz
Ahmed / Mr. Faroog Hassan

The Directors have confirmed thal none of them Is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed helding companies
where applicable).

All the resident directors of the Company are registered as fax payers and none of them has
defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a development financial institution or a
non-banking financial company, or being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared as
defaulter by the stock exchange.

A casual vacancy occurred on the board during the year which was filled up by the directors
immediately.

The company has prepared a “"Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with lis supporting policies and
procedures.

The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and Company Is
in process of developing significant peolicies thal will be approved by the beoard. A complete
record of pariculars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or
amended will be maintained.

All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions,
including appointment and determingtion of remuneration and terms and condilions of
employment of the CEQ, other execulive and non-execulive directors, have been taken by the
board.

The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the board for this purpose and the board has met at least once in every quarter. Written
notices of the board meetings, along with agenda and working. papers, were circulated ot least
seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and
circulated.

The board did not arrange director training program required under the code as out of 10 directors
¢ directors meet the exemption criteria of minimum fourteen years of education and fifteen years
of experience.

10) There were no new appointments of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit during

the year. Previously remuneration of Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Company
Secrelary was approved by the board.
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11) The Directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirement of the
Code of Corporate Governance and fully describes the sallent matiers required to be disclosed.

12) The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the CEO and CFO before
approval of the board.

13) The directors, CEO and executives-do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than
those disclosed in the pattern of shareholdings.

14) The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the
Code of Corporate Governance.

15) The board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of three members, of whom all are the
non-execulive directors and the chairman of the Committee Is an independent director .

14) The meetings of the audit committee were held ot least once every quarter prior to approval of
interim and final results of the Company and as required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the
committee have been formed and advised to the committee for compliance.

17) The board has formed an HR and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of three members, all of
whom are non-executive directors and chairman of the committee is an independent director..

18) The board has set up an effective infernal audit function which is suvitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and Is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

19) The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a safisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review Program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and mineor children do not hold
shares of the Company and that the firm and all Its partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants [IFAC) guidelines on the code of ethics as odopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

20) The statutory quditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed
that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

21) The ‘closed period’, prior fo the announcement of interim / final results, and business decisions,
which may materially affect the market price of the Company's securities, was determined and
infimated to directors and stock exchange.

22) Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market parlicipants at once
through stock exchange.

23) We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the Code of Corporate Governance have
been complied with, except for the following, toward which reasonable progress is being made by
the company to seek compliance by the end of next accounting year.

* The board has not evaluated it's own performance.

= The board has not defined materiality level.

» There are no adequate systems and conirols in place for identification and redress of
grievanances arising from unethical practices.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

W

Shahzad Ahmad
Chief Executive
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the
Code of Corporate Governance (the code) prepared by the Board of Directors (the Board) of Indus
Dyeing & Manufacturing Company Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2014 to
comply with the requirements of Listing Regulation no. 35 of the Karachi Stock Exchange where the
Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of the Company. Our responsibility
is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of
Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Code and report
if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board's statement on internal control covers all
risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's
corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board for their review and approval of its related party
transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in
arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length price and recording
proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of approval of related party transactions by the Board
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with
the best practices contained in the Code, as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30,
2014,

Further, we highlight following instances of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the Code as
stated in below mentioned paragraphs in the Statement of Compliance:

i Paragraph 6 which states that the Board is yet to develop significant policies as required by
clause v(c) of the Code; and

ii. Paragraph 23 which states that the Board has not;

a, developed formal mechanism for annual evaluation of its own performance as required by
clause vie) of the Code;

b. defined materiality level as required by clause v{g) of the Code; and

c. developed adequate systems and controls for identification and redress of grievances
arising from unethical practices as required by clause v(b} of the Code

Chartered Accountants

WM Betsy £ - L

Engagement Partner:
MNadeem Yousuf Adil

Date: October 03, 2014.
Place: Karachi
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 57 Annual General Meeting of Indus Dyeing & Mfg. Co. Ltd. will be held at Indus Dyeing &
Mig. Co. Lid. Plot No. 3 & 7, Sector No. 25, Korangi Industrial Areq, Karachi on Wednesday, Oclober 2%, 2014 at 5:00 P.M.
to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

. To confirm the minutes of 56" Annual General Meeling held on October 30, 2013,

2 To receive consider and adopt the Audited Accounts together with the Directors’ and Auditers’ report for the
period ended June 30, 2014,

3. To appoint auditors for the ensuing year, and fo fix their remuneration (Messer Yousuf Adil Saleem & Company
Charlered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for reappeintment.)

4. To approve interim cash dividend of Rs. 15 per share i.e, 150%.

5. Tofransact any other business with the permission of the chalr.

By Order of the Board
Karachi Ahmed Faheem Niazl
Date; 03-10-2014 Company Secretary
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Notes:

i) Members are requested to altend In person along with Computerized National Identity Card ("CNIC") or appoint
some other member as proxy and send their proxy duly wiinessed so as to reach the registered office of the
company not later then 48 hours before the fime of holding the meeting.

if) The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Wednesday, Cctober 22, 2014 to Octlober 27,
2014 (both days inclusive) and the final dividend will be paid fo the Members whose names will appear in the
Register of Members on October 21, 2014. Members (Non-CDC) are requested to promplly nofity the Company’s
Registrar of any change in their addresses and submit, if applicable to them, the Non-deduction of Iakat Form CI-
50 with the Registrar of the Company M/s s Evolution Factor (PVT) Lid. 407-408 Al-Ammera Center Shahra-e-lrag
Saddar Karachi. All the Members holding the shares through the CDC are requested to please update their

- addresses and Iakat status with their participants. This will assist in prompt receipt of Dividend.

Submission of coples of CNIC:

It is hereby reiterated that the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECF) vide Nofification 5.R.O.
779(1)/2011 dated August 18, 2011 and Notification 5.R.0. 831(1)/2012 dated July 5, 2012 has directed all the listed
companies fo Issve dividend warrant only crossed as “A/c Payee only” and ensure that the Dividend Warmrant
should bear the Computerized National idenfity Card (CNIC) Numbers of the registered members except in the
case of minor(s) and corporate shareholder(s).

All those members [(holding physical shares) who have not submitted their valid CNICs are once again requested
to send a photocopy of their valid CNIC/NTN along with the Folio number(s) to the Company’s Share Registrar.

In case of non-availability of a valid copy of the CNIC in the records of the Company, the Company will be
constrained to withhold the Dividend warrants in terms of Section 251(2)(a) of the Companies Ordinance 1784,
which will be released by the Share Registrar only upon compllance with the aforesald nofifications.
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Deduction of Income Tax from Dividend under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
Pursuant fo the provisions of the Finance Act 2014 effective July 1, 2014, the rates of deduction of income tax from
dividend payments under the income Tax Ordinance have been revised as follows:

{a) | Rate of tax deduction for filer of income tax refurns 0% |

(b) | Rate of deduction for non-filer of income tax returns 15%

All members of the Company who hold shares in physical form are therefore requested to send a valid copy of
their CNIC and NTN Cerlificate, to the Company Shares Registrar, M/s Evolution Faclor (PVT) Lid. At the above
mentloned address, to allow the Company o ascertain the staius of the members.

Members of the Company who hold shares in scrip-less form on Central Depository System (CDS) of Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) are requested to send valid coples of their CNIC and NTN
Cerlificate to their CDC participants CDC Investor Account Services.

Where the required documents are not submitted, the company will be constrained to treat the non-complying

members as a non filer hereby atiracting a higher rate of withholding tax.

Dividend Mandate {Optional):

The Company wishes to inform lts members that under the law they are also entitled to recelve their cash dividend
directly in their bank accounts instead of receiving it through dividend warrants. Members wishing to exercise this
option may submit their application to the Company’s Share Registrar, giving parficulars relating to their name,
folic number, bank account number, title of account and complete mailing address of the bank CDC account
holders should submit their request directly to their broker (participant)/ CDC.
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated balance sheet of Indus Dyeing & Manufacturing Company Limited
{the Company) as at June 30, 2014 and the related unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement
of comprehensive income, unconsolidated cash flow statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity
together with the notes forming part therecf, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of intemal control, and
prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free
of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant
estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

(a)  in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Ordinance, 1984;

(b)  inour opinion:

()  the unconsolidated balance sheet and unconsolidated profit and loss account together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and are in agreement
with the books of account and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied
except for change in accounting policy as disclosed in note 4.18 to the financial staternents with which
We concur,

(i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business: and

(i)  the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in
accordance with the objects of the Company;,

() in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
unconsolidated balance sheet, unconsolidated proft and loss account, unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, unconsolidated cash flow statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in
equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984 in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2014 and
of the profit, comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended: and

(d)  inouropinion Zakat deductible at source under Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980), was deducted
by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner:
Nadeem Yousuf Adil

Date: October 03, 2014
Place: Karachi
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Authorised share capital

45,000,000 ordinary shares

of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and
paid up capital

Reserves

Unappropriated profit

MNon-current liabilities

Long-term financing

Deferred liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Interest / mark-up payable
Short-term borrowings
Current portion of

Long-term financing

liabilites against assets
subject to finance lease

CONTINGENCIES AND
COMMITMENTS

Note

10
11

12

13

INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT JUNE 30, 2014

2014 2013
Rupees in '000
450,000 " 450,000
180,737 180,737
5,022,432 5,022,432
4,122 085 3,213,758
8,326,254 8,416,927
1,854,537 690,369
140,757 112,239
1,995,294 BO2 608
1,008,746 739,152
91,369 25,707
3,261,930 1,097,200 |
441,716 231,345
- 2222
4,803,750 2,005 716
16,124,208 11,315,251

ASSETS

MNon-current assets

Property, plant
and equipment
Long-term invesiments

Long-term deposits

Current assets

Stores, spares and
loose tools

Stock-in-trade
Trade debis

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and
short-term prepayments

Other receivables
Other financial assets

Tax refundable

Cash and bank balances

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

S rd atimas

Shahzad Ahmed
Chief Executive
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Note

14

15

16

17

18

18

20

21

22

23
24

Director

2014 2013
Rupees in "000
6,186,646 4 260,265
3,589,680 2,201,560
4,105 4 069
9,780,431 6,465,894
214,102 194 428
3911410 3,268,424
1,525,774 1,016,143
264,106 83,539
3,813 6,842
29,813 24,846
144,666 13,464
205,980 89,295
44,303 142,276
6,343,867 4 B40 357
16,124,298 11,315,251
MNaveed Ahmed




INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Sales - net
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Other income

Distribution cost
Administrative expenses
Other operating expanses

Finance cost

Gain on investment in associate distributed to
owners as specie dividend

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Eamings per share - basic and diluted

Note

26

28

29

iy |

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

S ot

Shahzad Ahmed
Chief Executive

/\JQ-M-G-H...

2014 2013
(Restated)
Rupees in '000
18,616,732 17,612,016
{16,663,738) (14,337,587)
2,052,994 3,274,429
116,653 40,916
2,169,647 3,315,345
(409,421) (379,288)
{219,953) (180,3817}
(79,016) {264.9&’32}
(401,510) (277,200)
(1,109,500) (1,111,851)
1,059,747 2,203,494
- 118,898
1,059,747 2323393
128,056 24 136
1,187,803 2,347,528
Rupees
{Restated)
65.72_ 129.89
/\.—-.---

MNaveed Anmed
Director



INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

2014 2013
(Restated)
Rupees in "000

Prafit for the year 1,187,803 2,347 529
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss - *
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability - net of tax {8,370} (13,923)
Total other comprehensive loss for the year {8,370) {13,823)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,179,433 2,333,606

The annexed notes from 1 1o 45 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

$f!§ Mot eess Ne—

Shahzad Abmed Maveed Ahmed
Ghief Executive Director
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INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
UNGONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Reserves
Capital Revenue
Iszued,
subscribed Share Merger Ganaral Unappropriated Total
and paid up premium reserve reserve profits
capital
Rupass in '000'

Balance at June 30, 2012 180,737 10,820 11,512 5,000,000 1,861,555 7,064,724
Comprehenaive income for the year;
Profit for tha year (a3 restated) - - - - 2,347,528 2,347 529
Othvar comprehansive income for the year (as restaled) i - » 8 (13.923) (13923
Total comprabansive income for the year = 2,333 606 2,333,608
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity
Final cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2012

% Ras. 20 par share - - - {3681,475) (361,475)
Interim dividend in specie for the pariod ended Deacember 31,

2012 in 100:08 ratio (nots 15.3) - - - - (438,191) (438,191)
Interim cash dividend for the period ended March 31, 2013

@ Rs. 10 par share - - - - {180,737) {180,737)
Balanca at Juna 30, 2013 180,737 10,920 11,512 5,000,000 3,213,758 8,418,927
Comprehensive incoma for the year;
Profit for tha yaar = - - 1,187 803 1,187,803
COthar comprehensive income for the year g 1 1| - (8,370} (8.370)
Total comprehansive income for the year - - - - 1,178,433 1,178,433
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity
interim cash dividend for the period ended September 31, 2013

% Rs. 5 per share - - - - (90,369) (90,389)
Interim cash dividend for the pericd anded Dacamber 31, 2013

@ Rs. 10 per share = = = =t {180,737) (180,737}
Balance at June 30, 2014 180,737 10,920 11,512 5,000,000 4,122 086 8,325,254
The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of thase uncansolidated financial statamants.

) O PV Nicatresr N~
Shahzad Ahmed Maveed Ahmed
Chief Executive Director




INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

2014 2013
(Restated)
Note Rupees in "000

A CASH FLOWS FROM ODPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations as 800,067 2,165,415
Income taxes paid - net (86,832) (177 .B76)
Finance cost paid (335,858) (276,530)
Long-term deposits paid (36) (446)
Gratuity paid 91 {27,781) {21,269)
MNet cash generated from operating activities 349,560 1,689,294

B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,424,653) (710,614)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant and equipment 14.2 26,470 12,953
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assels - 2,000
Long-term investments 15 (1,388,120) (150,000)
Dividends received 2176 19,440
Met cash used in investing activities (3,784,127) (826,221)

c CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term finance 2,144,085 78,000
Repayment of long-term finance (769,547) (137.881)
Loans from directors - net (9,490) 4026
Repayment of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease (2,222) (4,646)
Dividends paid (298,019) (521,079)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 1,064,807 {581,580)
Net {decreasa) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (2,369,760) 281,493
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (945,524) (1,227,017)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 7,657 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 36 {3,217,627) [945,524)

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these unconsclidated financial statements.

$ oAt hates. N

Shahzad Ahmed Naveed Ahmed
Chief Executive Director
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21

2.2

2.3

INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Indus Dyeing & Manufacturing Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on July 23, 1957 as a public limited
company under the Companies Act 1913 repealed by the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Registered office of the Company is situated
at Office No. 508, 5th, floor, Beaumont Plaza, Civil Lines, Karachi. The Company is currently listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange
Limited. The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of yarn. The manufacturing facilities of the Company are
located in Karachi, Hyderabad and Muzaffargarh. The Company is also operating two ginning units including one on leasing
arrangements in District Multan. The Company has the following group entities:

- Indus Lyallpur Limited - Wholly owned subsidiary

Indus Home Limited - Wholly owned subsidiary (control acquired during the year)
Indus Home USA Inc. - Wholly owned subsidiary of Indus Home Limited

Sunrays Textile Mills Limited - Associated undertaking

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These unconsoclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFR3) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions of or directives issued under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail,

Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain employea
retirement benefits which are measured at present value and certain financial instruments which are carried at fair value.

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2014:
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2014. These standards,
interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant

impact on the Company's financial staternents other than certain additional disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - Clarification Effective from accounting period beginning
of Requirements for Comparative information : on or after January 01, 2013

This improvement clarifies the difference between voluntary additional comparative information and the minimum reguired
comparative information. Generally, the minimum required comparative information is the previous period.

Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of Effective from accounting period beginning
servicing equipment on or after January 01, 2013

This improvement clarifies that major spare parts and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property, plant and equipment
are not inventory.

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Tax effects of Effective from accounting period beginning
distributions to holders of an equity instrument, and transaction costs of an on or after January 01, 2013
equity transaction '

This improvement clarifies that income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders are accounted for in accordance with 1AS
12 Income Taxes.

Amendments to I1AS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting - Interim reporting of Effective from accounting period beginning
segment  information for total assets and total [liabilities on orafter January 01, 2013

The amendment aligns the disclosure requirements for total segment assets with total segment liabilities in interim financial
statements. This clarification also ensures that interim disclosures are aligned with annual disclosures.
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2.4

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Ofisetling Effective from accounting period beginning
financlal assets and financial liabilities an or after January 01, 2013

Thesa amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights to set-off and relaled arrangements (e.g., collatersl
agreements). The disclosures would provide users with information that is useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements on
an entity's financial position. The new disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance
with LAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply 1o recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with 1AS 32.

IFRIC 20 - Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Effective from accounting period beginning
Surface Mine on or after January 01, 2013

This interpretation applies to waste remaoval (stripping) costs incurred in surface mining activity, during the production phase of the
mine. The Interpretation addresses the accounting for the benefit from the stripping activity.

The impact of adoption of 1AS-18 'Employee Benefits' (Revised 2011) has been disclosed in the note 4.18,
New accounting standards and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective:

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date
mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's
operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional
disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 38 - "Intangible Assets" and IAS 16 " Effective from accounting period beginning
Property, plant and Equipment" an or after January 01, 2016

These amendments introduces severe restrictions on the use of revenue-based amortization for intangible assets and explicitly
state that revenue-based methods of depreciation cannot be used for property, plant and equipment, The rebuttable presumption
that the use of revenue-based amortization methods for intangible assets are inappropriate can be overcome only when revenue
and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are ‘highly correlated’, or when the intangible asset is
expressed as a measure of revenue.

Amendments to IAS 41 - "Agriculture” and IAS 16 " Property, Effective from accounting period beginning
plant and Equipment" on or after January 01, 2016

Bearer plants are now in the scope of IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment’ for measurement and disclosure purposes. Therefore,
a company can elect to measure bearer plants at cost. However, the produce growing on bearer plants will continue to be
measured at fair value less costs to sell under |AS 41 'Agriculture’. A bearer plant is a plant that: is used in the supply of agricultural
produce; is expecied to bear produce for more than one period; and has a remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce.
Before maturity, bearer plants are accounted for in the same way as self-construcled items of property, plant and equipment during
construction,

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits: Employee Effective from accounting period beginning
contributions on or after July 01, 2014

This amendment clarifies the application of IAS 19, 'Employee benefits' (2011) - referred lo as 'IAS 19R', to plans thal require
employees or third parties to contribute towards the cost of benefits. The amendment does not affect the accounting for voluntary
contributions. The 2011 revisions to |AS 19 distinguished between employee contributions related to service and those not linked to
service, The current amendment further distinguishes between contributions that are linked to service only in the peried in which
they arise and those linked to service in more than one periad. The amendment allows contributions that are linked lo service, and
do not vary with the length of employee service, to be deducted from the cost of benefits eamed in the period that the service is

provided.

IAS 27 (Revised 2011) - Separate Financial Statements Effective from accounting period beginning
on or after January 01, 2015. IAS 27 (Revised
2011) will concurrently apply with IFRS 10.

The revised Standard sets out the requirements regarding separate financial statements only. Most of the requirements in the
revised Standard are carried forward unchanged from the previous Standard. The IASB has issued recently the amendment lo |AS
27 wharein it has allowed to follow the equity method in the separate financial statements also. These amendments will be effective
from January 01, 2016 with earlier application allowed.
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IAS 28 (Revised 2011) — Investments in Associates and Joint Effective from accounting period beginning
Ventures on or after January 01, 2015

Similar to the previous Standard, the new Standard deals with how to apply the equity method of accounting. However, the scope of
the revised Standard has been changed so that it covers investments in joint ventures as well because IFRS 11 requires
investments in joint ventures to be accounted for using the equity methed of accounting.

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Effective from accounting period beginning
financial assets and financial liabilities on or after January 01, 2014

These amendments clarify the meaning of "currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off". It will be necessary to assess the
impact to the entity by reviewing setllement procedures and legal documentation 1o ensure that offsetting is still possible in cases
wherea it has been achieved in the past, In certain cases, offsetting may no longer be achieved. In other cases, contracts may have
to be renegotiated. The requirement that the right of set-off be available for all counterparties to the netting agreement may prove to
be a challenge for contracts where only one party has the right to offset in the event of default.

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non- Effective from accounting period beginning
Financial Assets on or after January 01, 2014

The amendments:

- remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
“a significant amount of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives has been allocated in periods when no impairment or
reversal has been recognized (this requirement having been inadvertently introduced as part of consequential amendments on the
introduction of IFRS 13; and

- intreduce additional disclosure requirements in respect of assets for which an impairment has been recognized or reversed and
for which the recoverable amount is determined using fair value less costs of disposal.

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Effective from accounting period beginning
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting on or after January 01, 2014

The amendment allows the continuation of hedge accounting (under 1AS 30 and IFRS 9 chapter on hedge accounting) when a
derivative is notated to a clearing counterparty and certain conditioned are met.

IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements Effective from accounting period beginning
on or after January 01, 2014

IFRS 10 replaces the part of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that deals with consolidated financial
statements and SIC 12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. Under IFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation for all
entities, and that basis is control This change is to remove the perceived inconsistency between the previous version of I1AS 27 and
SIC 12; the former used a control concept while the latter placed greater emphasis on risks and rewards. IFRS 10 includes a more
robust definition of contral in erder to address unintentional weaknesses of the definition of contrel set out in the previous version of
IAS 27 Specific transitional provisions are given for entities that apply IFRS 10 for the first time. Specifically, entities are required to
make the ‘control’ assessment in accordance with IFRS 10 at the date of initial application, which is the beginning of the annual
reporting period for which IFRS 10 is applied for the first time No adjustments are required when the 'control’ conclusion made at
the date of initial application of IFRS 10 is the same before and after the application of IFRS 10. However; adjustments are required '
when the control” conclusion made at the date of initil application of IFRS 10 is different from that before the application of IFRS 10.

IFRS 11 = Joint Arrangements Effective from accounting period beginning
on or after January 01, 2015

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interest in Joint Ventures and SIC 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non monetary Contributions by
Venturers. IFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement should be classified where two or more parties have joint control. There are
two types of joint arangements under IFRS 11: joint operations and joint ventures. These two types of joint arrangements are
distinguished by parties’ nights and obligations under the arrangements. Under IFRS 11, the existence of a separate vehicle is no
longer a sufficient condition for a joint arrangement to be classified as a joint venture whereas, under IAS 31, the establishment of a
separate legal vehicle was the key factor in determining whether a joint arrangement should be classified as a jointly controlled
entity.

IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities Effective from accounting pericd beginning
on or after January 01, 2015

IFRS 12 iz a new disclosure Standard that sels out what entities need to disclose in their annual consolidated financial statements
when they have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates or unconsolidated structured entities (broadly the same as
special purpose entities under 5IC 12). IFRS 12 aims to provide users of financial statements with information that helps evaluate
the nature of and risks associaled with the reporting entity's interest in other entities and the effects of those interests on its
financial statements.
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IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement Effective frcm accounting period beginning on or after
January 01, 2018

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. IFRS
13 does not change the reguirements regarding which items should be measured or disclosed at fair value. The scope of IFRS 13
is broad; it applies ta both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument ilems for which other IFR3s require or permit fair
value measurements and disciosures about fair value measurements, except in specified circumstances. IFRS 13 gives a new
definition of fair value for financial reporting purposes. Fair value under IFRS 13 is defined as the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) markel at the
measurement date under current market condition (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using anather valuation technique. IFRS 13 should be applied prospectively as of the beginning of the annual pericd in
which it is initially applied.

IFRIC 21 - Levies Effective from accounting period beginning on or after
January 01, 2014

IFRIC 21 defines a levy as a payment to a government for which an entity receives no specific goods or services. A liability is
recognised when the obligating event occurs. The obligating event is the activity that triggers payment of the levy. This is typically
specified in the legislation that imposes the lavy

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) has
also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

- IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

- IFRS 14 - Regulatary Deferral Accounts

- IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, requires
management to make estimates, assumptions and judgment that affect the application of policies and the reported amount of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses,

Estimates and judgments, if any, are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumslances. The areas where various assumptions
and estimates are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements or where judgment was exercised in application of
accounting policies are as follows:

- Provision for current tax and deferred tax (Mote 33)

- Provision for gratuity (Note 9.1)

- Depreciation rates of property, plant and equipment (Note 14)

- Classification and impairment of investment (Mote 15 and 23)

- Met realisable value of stock-in-trade (Note 18)

- Provision for impairment of trade debts and other receivables (Note 19 & 22)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial staternents are set cut below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. |
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4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.4.1

Taxation

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams of the Company under presumptive [ final tax regime
at the applicable tax rates remaining taxable income at the current rates of taxation under normal tax regime after taking into
account tax credits and rebates available, if any, or on turnover at the specified rate or Alternative Corporale Tax as defined ir:
section 113C of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet liability method for all major temporary differences arising between lax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the unconsolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that tax profits and taxable temporary differences will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits and taxable temporary differences will be available to allow all or
part of the assets 0 be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the liability is setiled or the asset realized.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to

_equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. The effect of deferred taxation of the portion of the income subject

to final tax regime is also considered in accordance with the requirement of Technical Release - 27 of Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan.

Staff retirement benefit
Defined benefit plan

The Company operates unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its employees who have completed minimum qualifying period.
Provisions are determined based on the actuarial valuation conducted by a qualified actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method.
Under this method cost of providing for gratuity is charged to profit and loss account so as to spread the cost over the service lives
of the employees in accordance with the actuarial valuation. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in profit and loss
account and actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

Compensated absences

The Company provides for compensated absences of its employees on unavailed balance of leaves in the period in which the
leaves ‘are earned.

Trade and other payahbles

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future
for goods and services received whether billed to the company or not.

Property, plant and equipment

Owned

Property, plant and equipment owned by the Company are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss if any,
except freehold and leasehold land. Depreciation is charged to income using the reducing balance method whereby cost of an
asset is written-off cver its estimated useful life at the rates given in note 14.1 .

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to flow from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss ansing on derecognition of the asset is recognised in the profit and loss account in the year the
asset is derecognised.

In respect of additions and disposals during the year, depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition and upto the month
preceding the disposal respectively,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to income during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methads, useful lives and residual values are reviewed pericdically and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.
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4.4.2

4.4.3

4.5

451

452

4.6

4.7

4.8

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) is stated at cost. All expenditures connected to the specific assets incurred during ihe inztaliation
and construction period are carried under CWIP. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are ready for their
intended use.

Assets held under finance lease

Assets subject to finance lease are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assels, or, where
shorter, over the term of the relevant lease.

Impairment
Financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether thera is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired, A financial asset or a group of financial assets is desmed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred 'loss event’) and that loss event has an impact an the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial renrganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the sstimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic canditions that correlate with defaults.

Mon-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheel date whether there is any indication that assets except deferred tax assets and
inventories may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they
are recorded in excess of their recoverable ameunt. Where carrying values excead the respective recoverable amount, assets are
written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impaimment loss is recognized in profit and loss account. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use,

Leases

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lesse transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All ather leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance
sheet as liabilities against assets subject to finance lease. The liabilities are classified as current and long-term depending upon the
timing of payment. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the liabilities against assets subject
to finance lease so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
to income, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the
Company's general policy on borrowing costs.

Stores, spares and loose tools
These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, determined on moving average cost method less allowance for cbsolete

and slow moving items. Items in transit are valued at invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon.
Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of cost and net reaiizable value applying the following basis:
Basis of valuation

Raw material Weighted average cost
Work-in-progress Weighted average cost of material and share of
applicable overheads

Finished goods Weighted average cost of material and share of
applicable overheads

Packing matenal Moving average cost

Waste Met realizable value

Stock in transit Accumulated cost till balance sheet date

Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion an
estimated cost necessary to make the sale.
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4.9

4.10

4.10.1

4.10.2

4.10.3

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful receivables based on
review of indicators as discussed in note 4.5.1. Balances considered bad and irrecoverable are written off when identified.

Investments
Regular way purchase or sale of investments

All purchases and sales of investments are recognized using settlement date accounting. Settlement date is the date that the
investments are deliverad to or by the company.

Investment in associate, joint venture and subsidiary

Associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence but not control, generally represented by shareholding of
20% to 50% of the voting rights.

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint
contral, and a jointly controlied entity is a joint venture that involves the establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer
has an interest.

Subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has the control, that is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its operating activities.

The investments in subsidiary, associate and joint venture are stated at cost less any impainment losses in these unconsolidated
financial statements. Subsequently, the recoverable amount is eslimated to determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and
carrying amounts are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in the profit and loss account, Where
impairment losses subsequently reverse, the carrying amounts of the investments are increased to the revised recoverable
amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. Reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss
account adjusted for impairment, if any, in the recoverable amounts of such investments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading

An investment that is acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term fluctuations in prices is classified as
"fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading”,

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried ‘at fair value through
profit or loss', Financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or loss' are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs
are recognised in the profit and loss account.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss account upon
initial recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise: or

- the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's risk management; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value thtough profit or loss,

Subsequent to initial recognition, equity securities designated by the management as *at fair valug through profit or loss' are valued
on the basis of closing quoted market prices available at the stock exchange.

All investments are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership,

Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or loss® are taken
1o the profit and loss account.
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4.104

4.1

4.12

413

4.14

4.16

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recorded at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are remeasured to fair value at
subsequent reporting dates. Derivatives with positive impact at balance sheet date are included in 'other financial assets’ and with
negative impacts in “frade and other payable' in the balance sheet. The resultant gains and losses are included in other income,

Derivatives financial instruments entered into by the Company do not meet the hedging criteria as defined by IAS 39, Financial
Instruments: 'Recognition and Measurement'. Consequently hedge accounting is not used by the Company.

Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of ime to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added 1o the cost of those assets, until

such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurmed.

Foreign currencies

These unconsclidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency. Transactions in other than Pakistani Rupee are translated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the date of transactions except for those covered by forward conftracts, which are translated at contracted rates. At each balance
sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities thal are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date except for those covered by forward contracts, which are stated at contracted rates

Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in profit or loss account.

Provigions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefils will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made. However, provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
eslimate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and is recognised on the

following basis:

- Sales are recorded when the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the customers
which coincide with the dispatch of goods to the cusiomers.

- Income on bank deposits are recorded on time proportionate basis using effective interest rate.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Financial instruments

Al financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument and derecognised when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise of the financial assets and in
case of financial liability when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Other particular

recognition methods adopted by the Company are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item of
financial instruments.
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416 Offsetting of financial assets and financial llabllitles

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the Company has a legal right to
offset the recognized amounts and also intends either to seitle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously.

417 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash, balances with banks on cument and deposit accounts and short term borrowings excluding loans from
directors and their spouses.

4.18 Dividend distribution
4.18.1 Cash dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company’'s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the unconsolidated financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

4.18.2 Specie dividend

Distribution of specie dividend to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in these unconsolidated financial
- statements in the peried in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders at the fair value of the assets to be
distributed. At the end of the reporting period, the management reviews and adjusts the carrying value of the dividend payable, with
any changes in carrying amount to be recognised in equity. When the Company settles the liability any difference between the
carrying amount of the assets distributed and the camying amount of the dividend payable is recognised in profit or loss account,

4.18.2 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighled average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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4.19

Change in accounting policy
IAS 19 - Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011)

In the current year, the Company has adopted IAS 19 Employecs Benefits {as revised in 2011) along with related
consequential amendments.

The revised IAS 19 changes the accounting for defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The most significant change
relates to the accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations and plan assels. The amendments require the racognition
of changes in defined benefit obligations and in the fair value of plan assets when they occur, and hence eliminate the ‘corider
approach’ permitted under the previous version of IAS 19 and accelerate the recognition of past service costs. All actuarial
gains and losses are recognized immediately through other comprehensive income in order for the gratuity assets or liability
recognized in the balance sheet to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus. Furtharmare, the interest cost and
expacted retumn on plan assets used in previous version of IAS 19 are replaced with a 'net interest’ amount under 1AS 19 (as
revised in 2011), which is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or assets. In addition, IAS
19 (as revised in 2011) introduce certain changes in the presentation of the defined benefit cost including more extensive
disclosures. ;

Specific transitional provisions are applicable to the first-time application of 1AS 19 (as revised in 2011). The Company has
applied the relevant transitional provisions and restated the comparative amounts on retrospeclive basis in accordance with
IAS 8 - 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’. Previously the Company recognised actuarial
gains / losses in profit and loss account. However, as a result of adoption of revised IA5-18, the effect of remeasurement is
directly recognised in other comprehensive income. The effect of change in accounting policy for the year ended June 30,
2012 was not material, therefore, third balance sheet for the year 2012 has not been presented. The affect of retrospective
application of change in accounting policy is as follows:

Amount as Effect of Amount
reported change in as restated
earlier accounting
policy
cmmmemsman e RUpEES in 000
For the year ended June 30, 2013
Effect on profit and loss account
Cost of goods sold 14,345,004 11,417 14,337,587
Administrative expenses 192,587 2,506 190,381
14,541,891 13,923 14,527 968
Profit afler taxation 2,333 606 13923 2,347,529
Earning per share 129,12 077 120.85
Effect on Statement of Comprehensive Income
Other comprehensive income far the year - 13,923 (13,8923)
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL
2014 2013 Note 2014 2013
MNo. of shares Rupees in '000
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each
8,637,116 0,637,116 fully paid in cash 96,371 86,371
Other than cash
5,282,097 5,282,097 Issued to the shareholders of YTML 51 52,821 52,821
3,154,518 3,154,519 Issued as bonus shares 31,545 31,545
18,073,732 18,073,732 180,737 180,737
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6.1

5.2

5.3

6.4

6.1

6.2

These shares were issued pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation with Yousuf Textile Mills Limited (YTML), determined as
at October 01, 2004, in accordance with the share-swap ratio.

There is no movement in issued, subscribed and paid-up capital during the year.

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares which cammy no right to fixed income. The holders are entitied lo receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled 1o one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank
equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

The Company has no reserved shares for issuance under options and sales contracts.

2014 2013
Note Rupees in "000
RESERVES
Capital
Share premium 6.1 10,920 10,920
Merger reserve 6.2 11,512 11,512
22,432 22,432
Revenue
General reserve 5,000,000 5,000,000
5,022,432 5,022,432

This represents share premium received in year 2001 in respecl of the issue of 3,639,980 right shares at a premium of
Rs.3/- per share.

Merger reserve represents excess of (a) assets of YTML over its liabilities merged with the Company over (b) consideration to
shareholders of YTML as per the Scheme of Amalgamation, (Rafer note 5.1)

2014 2013
Note Rupeeas in "000
LONG-TERM FINANCING
Secured
From banking companies 71872 2,296,252 821,714
Less: Payable within one year {441,715) (231,345)
1,854,537 690,369




74

1.2

7.3

The particulars of above long-term loans are as follows:

Type and nature of loan

Demand finance loans

Fived assets finances
Term finances

Long term financing - Export
orientad projects

Musharikah agreement

Type and nature of loan

Demand finance loans
Fixed assels finances

Term finances

Long term financing

Musharikah agreament

2014
Amount Sanctioned Mark up rate Tarms of
cutstanding amount par annum repaymants
Rupeas in "000
3,176 117,842 & month KIBOR + 1.25% half yearly
257 2,058 & month KIBOR + 1.25% Half yearly
1,546,900 2410000 3 monthKIBOR+0E56% to 3 Quarterly
month KIBOR + 1.5%
227,817 895,000 8% to 11.5% Guarterly and
half yearly
8,102 900,000 3 month KIBOR + 1% Quartarly
2,296,252 4,325,000
2013
Amount Sanctioned Mark up rate Terms of
outstanding amount per annum Repayments
Rupees in ‘000
4374 120.000 & month KIBOR + 1.25% Half yearty
772 2,058 & month KIBOR + 1.25% Half yearty
3 monih KIBOR + 1% to 3 Quarerty and half
GiRaee AT R month KIBOR + 1.25% yearly
Quarterly and
7%
43211 120,000 Dk in3 half yearly
57,498 300,000 3 month KIBOR + 1% Quarterly
921,714 2,002,058

These finances are secured by charge over property, plant and equipment and land and building of the Company.

There is no significant non compliance of the financing agreements with banking companies which may expose the Company

to penalties or early repayment.
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8.1

9.

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

The future minimum lease payments to which the Company is committed as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

2014 2013
Minimum Minimum
lease Present lease Present
payments value payments value
smmammas Rupees in "000 s Rupees in "000 —=--=munumame
Within one year - - 221 2,222
After one year
but not more than five years - - = -
Total minimum lease payments - - 223 2222
Less: Amount representing
finance charges - - {9) 5
. Present value of
minimum lease paymenls - - 2,222 2,222
Less: Current portion - - (2.222) {2,222)

These represents finance lease arrangements entered into with financial institution for generator. During the year the company
has exercised the option to purchase the leased asset.

2014 2013
Note Rupees in '000
DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Provision for gratuity a1 140,757 112,238
140,757 112,239
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Provigion for gratuity

The Company operates unfunded gratuity scheme for all its confirmed employees who have completed the minimum qualifying
period of service, Provision is made to cover obligations under the scheme on the basis of valuation conducted by a qualified
actuary. The last such valuation was conducted on June 30, 2014 using Projected Unit Credit Method. Details assumptions used
and the amounts charged in these financial statements are as follows

2014 2013
Significant actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 13.25% 10.50%
Expected rate of increase in salary level 12.25% 9.50%
Average expected remaining working life of employees 6 years 6 years

Mortality rates assumed were based on the SLIC 2001-2005 mortality table.

The rates for withdrawal from service and retirement on ill-health grounds are based on industry / country experience.

2014 2013
{Restated)
Rupees in "000
Present value of defined benefit obligation 140,757 112,239
Movement in net defined lability
Balance at the beginning of the year 112,239 84,869
Recognized in profit and loss account
Current service cost 37,602 22,834
Interest cost 10,327 HiRS
47,929 34,716
Recognized in ather comprehensive income
Actuarial loss on remeasurement of obligation 8,370 13,923
Benefits paid (27.781) (21,268)
Presant value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 2014 140,757 112,239
Actuarial gains and losses
Experience adjustments 8,370 13.923
8,370 13,923

Sensitivity analysis

Reascnable possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amount shown below:
impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in
agsumptions

Increase Decreasa
-mee== [Rupees in "000) --------

Discount rate 1% (8,062) 9,336
Salary Growth Rate 1% 9,819 (8,646)
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2014 2013

Note Rupees in "000
10. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 310,025 120,250
Accrued liabilities 101 411,921 261,524
Infrastructure cess 10.2 168,390 139,445
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 10.3 56,938 121,679
Advance from customers k 15,177 14,801
Unclaimed dividends / dividends payable Zrar 54,130
Withholding tax payable 2,001 1,842
Unrealised loss on derivative financial instruments - 441
Others 17,077 25,040

1,008,748 739 152

10.1 This includes Rs.249.884 million (2013: Rs. 3.268 million) due to related parties.

10.2 It represents infrastructure cess payable to Excise and Taxation Officer (ETQ) in respect of imported goods under the Sindh
Finance Ordinance 2001. In the year 2010-11, the High Court of Sindh has passed an interim crder o return the bank guaraniges
in respect of infrastructure cess payable on goods imported before December 28, 2006. Further the Honorable Court has also
ordered to pay off 503 of the infrastructure cess payable on goods imported on and after December 28, 2006 and to submit bank
guarantees for balance 50%. However, the Company has not reversed the provision in respect of the infrastructure fee pertaining
to peried before December 28, 2006 amounting to Rs. 47.759 million (2013: Rs. 47.759 million), considering the possible future

lagal action.
2014 2013
Note Rupees in "000
10.3 Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Balance at beginning of the year 121,679 73,398
Allocation for the year 56,938 121,679
Interest charged during the year on the funds utilized
by the Company 32 4,240 5,648
182,857 200,725
Payments made during the year (125,919) (79,046)
Balance at end of the year 56,938 121,679
1. INTEREST / MARK-UP PAYABLE
On secured loans from banking companies
- Leng-term financing 71,181 19,180
- Short-term borrowings 20,178 6,527
91,359 25,707
12 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
From banking companies - secured
Running finance / cash finance arrangements 12.1 303,010 396,359
Finance against export/ import 122 2,858,920 691,441
12.3 3,261,930 1,087 800
From related parties - unsecured
Directors and their spouses 124 - 9,430
3,261,930 1,097,290
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13.1.2

131.3

13.1.4

13.2

14,

These carry mark-up ranging from 3 month KIBOR + 0.15% to 1 month KIBOR + 2.00% (2013: 1 month KIBOR + 0.5% to 1 month
KIBOR + 1.75%). These are secured against charge over current assets of the Company with upto 25% margin.

These carry mark-up ranging from 1 month LIBOR + 0.4% to 1 menth LIBOR + 2.5% (2013: 1 month LIBOR + 0.7% to 1 month
LIBOR + 1.19) on foreign currency borrowing amount. These arrangements are secured against charge over current assets of the
Company.

The Company has agaregated short-term borrowing facilities ameunting to Rs. 9,558 million (2013; Rs. 7,874 millien) from varnous
commercial banks. These are secured against charge over cumment assets of the Company with upto 25% margin,

These are interest free and are payable within one year.

2014 2013
Rupees in "000

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

Claim of arrears of social security contribution not acknowledged, appeal is
pending in honorable High Court of Sindh. The management is hopeful for
favorable outcome.

49,820 |

Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company 49,820
Guarantees issued by banks in favour of gas companies 19,306 18,306
Bank guarantees against payment of infrastructure cess 123,042 98,042
Commitments
Letters of credit for raw material and stores and spares 671,260 112,569
Letters of cradit for property, plant and equipment 74,304 1,423 369
Civil work contracts 70,000 176,350
Foreign currency forward contracts - 89,660
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 14.1 6,109,008 4,176,585
Capilal work-in-progress 14.3 77,638 83,680
6,186,646 4,260,265
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2014 2013

Nota Rupses in '000
14.3 Capital work-In-progress
Civil works 2 45,071 38,6812
Plant and machinery - 25,385
Vehicles BATE 4 454
Advance against implementation of ERP 24,081 15,219
14.3.1 77,638 83,680

1431  Capital work-In-prograss

Advance
Civil Plant and Furniture against
works machinery Ve and fixture Iimplementation Total
of ERP

R e e SOOI | 117:1:1-1 T 1] 1.1 | PR ki ¥mh Rsle e S

As at June 30, 2012 9,431 54731 4,492 658 - 658,312

Additions during the year 183,811 80,996 70,058 634 15,218 350,719

Transferred to operating

fixed assets {154,630) (110,332) (70,087) (1,2682) - (336,351)

As at June 30, 2013 38,612 25,305 4,454 - 15,219 83,680

Additions during the year 353,540 206,236 13,341 - 8,872 581,989

Transferred to operating

fixed assets (247.,081) (231,631) (9,319) - - (588,031)

As at June 30, 2014 45,071 - 8,476 - 24,091 77,638

2014 2013
Note Rupees in '000
15. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Investment in jaint venture 15.1 - 1,198,084

Investment in associate 15.2 13,476 13,476

Investment in subsidiaries 153 & 154 3,576,204 990,000

3,689,680 2,201,560

151 On November 21, 2013, the Company acquired 75 million shares of Indus Home Limited from WestFoint Pakistan LLC for an
aggregate purchase consideration of USD 12 million. As a result of the acquisition, the Company acquired controlling interest in
Indus Home Limited by way of 100% ownership. Accordingly, the investment is now classified as ‘investment in subsidiary' (refer
note 15.3)

15.2 Due to commen directorship, the investment has been classified as investment in associates.
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15.3

15.4

16.

17.

174

18.

2014 2013

Rupees in "000
Investment in subsidiaries
Indus Home Limited (IHL)
Opening balance - 1,198,084
Transferred from 'Investment in Joint Venture' (note 15.1) 1,198,084 4
Investment made during the year 1,283,120 -
Closing balance 2,491,204 1,198,084

IHL is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is involved in the business of griege, terry towel and other textile products.
The subsidiary is incorporated in Pakistan as public unlisted company. Investment in IHL is carried at cost in these
unconsolidated financial statermeant.

2014 2013
Rupees in '000
Indus Lyallpur Limited (ILP)
Opening 980,000 840,000
Investment made during the year 95,000 150,000
Closing 1,085,000 990,000

ILP is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is invelved in the business of manufacturing, export and sale of yarn. The
subsidiary is incorporated in Pakistan as public unlisted company. Investment in ILP is cammied at cost in these unconsolidated
financial statement.

2014 2013
Mote Rupees in "000
LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Electricity 3,790 3,754
Others 315 s
4,105 4 069
STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores, spares and loose tools 171 215,102 195,428
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock {1,000} {1,000)
214,102 194,428
It include stores and spares in transit amounting to Rs, 3.739 millien {2013; Rs.10.561 million).
2014 2013
Rupees in "000
STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw maternial
- in hand 2945123 2,638,291
- in transit 142,545 108,191
3,087,668 2,746 482
Work-in-process 309,978 218,135
Finished goods 386,515 2106684
Packing material 43,958 33575
Waste 83,291 61,548
3,911,410 3,268 424




19.

191

19.2

18.3

19.4

19.5

20.

TRADE DEBTS

Considered good

Secured
Foreign debtors
Local debtors

Unsecured
Local debtors

Considerad doubtful

Les=s: Provision for doubtful debts

Note

18.2

18.1 & 1832

19.5

This includes balances from the following related parties which are not past due:

Indus Lyalipur Limited (Subsidiary}
Indus Home Limited (Subsidiary)

These are secured against letters of credit in favour of the Company.

2014 2013

Rupees in ‘000
1,127,513 423,938
308,812 401,562
1,437,326 825,500
93,679 190,643
1,531,004 1,016,143
- 8,393
1,531,004 1,024 536
{5,220) {8,393)
1,525,774 1,016,143
. 9,090
- 13,205
- 22,205

Trade debts consist of a large number of customers, spread across geographical areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed

on the financial candition of credit customers.

Aging of local debtors - not impaired

From 1 to 30 days
From 30 to 60 days
From 60 to 90 days

Movement of provision
Opening balance

During the year
Reversal

Closing balance

LOANS AND ADVANCES
Considered good

Loans to staff
Advance income tax - net

Advances to:

- Suppliers
- Others

45

Mote

201

2014 2013
(Rupees in '000)

216,638 335417
90,290 152,694
96,563 104,094

8,293 3,493
- 4,900
(3,163) -
5,230 B,393
13,254 9.471

211,598 37 A7
27,7112 25,081
11,5642 11,570
39,254 36,651

264,106 83,538




2014 2013

Mote {Rupees in "000)
2041 Advance income tax - net
Advance income tax 233,676 270,143
Provision for taxation - (138.278)
Workers Welfare Fund 2011 (22,078) {94,448)
211,598 T 4T
20.1.1  Prior to certain amendments made through the Finance Acts of 2006 & 2008, Worker Welfare Fund (WWF) was levied at 2% of
the total income assessable under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 excluding incomes falling under the Final Tax Regime
(FTR). Through Finance Act. 2008, an amendment was made in Section 4(5) of the WWF Ordinance, 1971 (the Ordinance)
whereby WWF liability is applicable at 2% of the higher of the profit before taxation as per the accounts or declared income as
per the return.
Aggrieved by the amendments made through the Finance Act, certain stakeholders filed petition against the changes in the
Lahare High Court which struck down the aferementioned amendments to the WWF Ordinance in 2011. However, the Company
together with other stakeholders also filed the petition in the Sindh High Court which, in 2013, decided the pelition against the
Company and other stakeholders. Management has filed a petition before the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the decision of
Jthe Sindh High Court. On prudent basis, the Company has recognized aggregate provision amounting to Rs. 145.5 million for the
years from 2010 to 2014, although management based on advice of the legal advisor is confident that the ultimate decision would
be in favor of the Company.
2014 2013
Note Rupees in ‘000
by TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Considered good
Trade deposits 883 i
Prepayments 3,130 6.842
' 3,813 6,842
22, OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good
Cotton claims 14,233 14,241
Others 15,580 10,705
29,813 24,946
23. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Carrying value of investment at fair value through
profit and loss- held for trading 231 144 666 13,464
2314 Market value of other financial assets
2014 2013 2014 2013
MNo. of shares / units Rupees in "000
Investment in ordinary shares of listed companies
30,000 30,000 Fauiji Fertilizer Company Limited 3,367 3,223
11,088 7,000 Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 4,312 2,243
60,500 60,500 United Bank Limited 10,198 6,508
100,000 100,000 Pakistan International Airlines
Corporation Limited 659 o0e
2014 2013 2014 2013
Mo. of units Rupees in "000
Investment in units of mutual funds
1,884 1,728 HEL Money Market Fund 189 175
236 195 Meezan Soverasign Fund 12 48
8,533 7.904 MNAFA Government Security Liquid Fund g6 79
1,247,392 - Askari Sovereign Cash Fund 125,439 -
3,028 2,811 UBL Ligquidity Plus Fund 304 282
144,568 13,464




24. TAX REFUNDABLE

Sales tax refundable
Income tax refundable

25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
With banks
- in deposit accounts
- in current accounts

Cash in hand

26. SALES
Export sales
Less: Commission

Local sales

Yam
Waste

Less:

Sales lax @ 2% on local sales

Brokerage

2014 2013
MNote Rupees in ‘000
68,337 64,751
137,643 34,544
205,980 99,265
- 7.676
39,165 129,732
39,165 137,408
5138 4 BGE
44,2303 142,276
26.1 & 26.2 16,550,457 14,798,928
(177, ,644) (273.676)
15,372,813 14,525,252
3,132,359 2,937,325
293,225 254 8600
3,425 584 3,191,925
126,245 47,31
§5,420 57,790
{181,665) (105,161}
3,243,919 3,086,764
18,616,732 17,612,016

26.1 It includes exchange gain of Rs. 4.760 million (2013: exchange loss of Rs. .01 million) and indirect export of Rs. 3,432 million

(2013: Rs.3,542.36 million).

26.2 It includes indirect exports to related undertakings of Rs. 373 million {2013: Rs. 167.61 million).

27. COST OF GOODS S0LD

Raw material consumed
Manufacturing expenses
Qutside purchases - yarn

Work in process

- Opening
- Closing

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods

- Opening
- Closing

47

2014 2013
(Restated)
Note Rupees in '000
271 13,328,211 11,626,672
272 3,302,636 2,545 847
224,308 165,095
16,855,155 14,337 614
216,135 198,360
{309,978) (216,135)
(93,843) (17.775)
16,761,312 14,319,838
272,232 289,980
(469,806) (272,232}
(197,574) 17,748
16,563,738 14,337,587




271 Raw material consumed

Opening stock
Purchases

Caost of raw cotton sold
Closing stock

27.2 Manufacturing expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits

Fuel, water and power

Packing material consumed

Stores and spares consumed

Repairs and maintenance

Ingurance

Rent, rates and taxes

Depreciation on operating fixed assets
Other

27.21

14.1.1

27.21  ltincludes staff retirement benefits Rs. 49.560 million {2013: Rs. 44.372 million).

28. OTHER INCOME

Gross profit on trading of raw cotton
Other

281 Gross profit on trading of raw cotton

Sales

- Export
- Local

Less: Cost of goods sold

- Export
- Local

48

Note

28.1
28.2

2,638,201 1,365,304
13,699,896 12,972 578
16,338,187 14,337,882

(64,853) (72.919)
(2,945,123) (2,638,291)
13,328,211 11,626,672

793,901 667,322

1,262,595 810,740

279,262 253,328

426,404 331,492
39,845 20,594
39,603 22,018
1,897 2,167
441,866 368872
17,263 69,316

3,302,626 2,545 847

2014 2013
Rupees in '000
1,136 8,310
115,617 32,606
116,653 40,916
- 71,549
65,989 9,680
65,989 81,229
- (63,348)
(64,853) (9,571)
(64,853) (72,919)
1,136 B,310




29.

30.

Othar
Income from non-financial asaets:

Scrap sale
Storage income

Gain on disposal of operaling fixed assets

Income from financial assets:

Unrealised gain on other financial assals

Unrealised gain on revaluation of foreign currency loans

Dividand income
Profit on Term Daposit Raceipts

DISTRIBUTION COST

Export
Ccean freight

Export development surcharge

Export charges
Local
Freight
Others
Insurance
Others

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits
Directors’ remuneration
Meeting fees

Repairs and maintenance
Postage and telephong
Travelling and conveyance
Vehicles running

Printing and stationery
Rent, rates and taxes
Utilities

Entertainment

Fees and subscription
Insurance

Legal and professional
Charity and donations
Auditors' remuneration

Depreciation on operating fixed assets

Provision for doubtful debts
Advertisement
Others

49

5189 5673
- 416
1.985 m
8,717 3,027

97,657 -
2178 19,440
1.663 ara
115,517 32 606
121,009 116,119
30,812 28,000
165,325 149,228
75,450 71.054
117 446
13,401 12,272
2,807 2,169
409,421 379, 288

2014 2013
(Restated)
Note Rupees in '000

30.1 71,301 46,923
33,251 45,160
234 278
2334 3.026
6,045 5,825
8,566 B115
7.047 9,405
5,648 5422
6,538 6,928
9,754 7.419
3,260 2,145
6,895 5,508
6,710 3,345
1,084 1,792
302 2,993 1,243
30.3 1,711 1,869
14.1.1 31,922 22,791
- 4,900
167 1,367
14,512 6,829
219,953 190,381




30.1
30.2

N,

32.

33

3341

It includes staff retirement benefits Rs. 6.74 million (2013: Rs. 4.27 million)

MNone of the directors and their spouses have any interest in the donees fund

Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee
Half year review fee
Fee for certifications and other
Out of pocket expenses

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Woearkers' Profit Participation Fund

Exchange loss on foreign currency transactions
Workers' Welfare Fund

Unrealised loss on derivative financial instrument

FINANCE COST

Mark-up on:
- long-term finance
- liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
- short-term borrowings

Discounting charges on letters of credit

Interest on Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Barnk charges and commission

TAXATION

Current
Prior year
Deferred

Reconciliation between accounting profit and taxable income
Accounting profit before tax

Tax rate %

Tax on accounting profit

Effect of:
Income chargeable to tax at reduced rates
Prior year charge
Tax impact of tax credit
Unrecognised lemporary differences
Others

Tax charge for the year as per accounts

50

2014 2013
Rupees in "000
1,100 1,100
200 288
280 280
| 191
1,711 1,869
56,938 121 679
- 20.524
22,078 122,338
- 441
79,016 264,982
2014 2013
Rupees in ‘000
206,165 110,142
32 415
165,665 152, 828
11,502 1,395
4,240 5,648
14,006 6,772
401,510 277,200
. 144 689
(128,056) {6,411)
- {162 414)
(128,056) (24,136)
1,058,747 2,300,470
34% 35%
360,314 808,315
(183,046) (743,359)
(128,0586) {6.411)
(184,160) (41,965)
6,476 (40,716)
416 -
{128,056) (24,136)




34 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There iz no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the company, which is based on:

Profit for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary
ghares outstanding during the year

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted

35. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation

Adjustmenls for:
Depreciation
Provision for gratuity
Provision for doubtful debts
Unrealised gain on other financial assets
Unrealised loss on derivative financial instrument
Unrealised gain on revaluation of foreign currency loans
Gain on dispasal of operating fixed assets
Dividends income
Profit on distribution of specie dividend
Finance cost

Cash generated before working capital changes

Woarking capital changes:
(Increase) / decrease in current assels

Stores, spares and loose loals
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Leans and advances
Trade deposils and short term prepayments
Other receivables
Other financial assets
Increase in current liability
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

36. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Short term borrowings excluding loan from directors

51

2014 2013
(Restated)
Rupees in "000 1,187,803 2,347,529
Mo. of shares
18,073,732 18,073,732
Rupees 65.72 128.89
2014 2013
(Restated)
MNote Rupees in ‘000
1,059,747 2,323,383
1411 473,787 3091 663
8.1 47,929 34,716
19.5 - 44800
28.2 (6,717) (3,027)
- 441
(97.657) =
14.2 {1,985) (3,171}
28.2 {2,176) {19,440)
- {119,889
32 401,510 277,200
1,874,438 2 886775
(19,674) (28,683)
(642, 986) (646,089)
(509,631) (247 405)
(T2,364) 41,182
3,029 (5,292)
(4,867) (12,510)
1124,385) -
(1,370,878) {898,797)
296 507 177.436
800,087 2,165 415
25 44 303 142 276
12 (3,261,930) (1,087.800)
(3,217 ,627) (945, 524)
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38,

REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND DIRECTORS
The aggregate amounts charged in the accounts for remuneration, including all benefits to chief executive officer and directors of

the company are given below:

2014
Chief Executive

Particulars Uiroctors Exscutives Total
Officer Executive Non-Execulive
Rupeas in "000.
Remuneration inciuding benefils 8,460 23,480 21,214 53,154
Madcal 580 T 1,920 330
Ratwamant benedils = - 12564 12.564
Lhililias BT0 1.054 - - 1,764
Maating faes 44} 120 Td - 234
Taotal 8,750 25424 T4 35 698 70,945
Murrber of parsons 1 B 3 25 L]
2013
Partieulars Chief Executive Diraciors Exacutives Total
Orfficer Executive Non-Executive
............ ._Rup“' oy *DeDD

Remunaration including benafits 480 34,164 17 547 58 191
Medical 20 AT 1,755 82N
Ratirament banafits ot i 10.B56 10,856
Litilitas 545 851 - - 1,500
Meating feas 38 153 83 24 ITH
Total 7787 39,054 63 18z 77.088
Number of persans 1 B 3 25 i5

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of subsidiaries Indus Lyallpur Limited and Indus Home Limited, an associate (Sunrays Textiles Mills
Limited), key management personnel and post employment benefit scheme. The Company carries out transactions with related
parties as per agreed terms. Short term loan obtained from directors are disclosed in note 12 to the unconsolidated financial
statements. Remuneration of key management personnel is disclosed in note 37 to the unconsolidated financial statements and
ameunt due in respect of staff retirement benefils is disclosed in note 9.2, Other significant transactions with related parties are

as follows:

Relationship with
the Company

Subsidiaries

Associate

Joint Venture

Directors

Other related parlies (due to
comman directorship)

Relationship with

the Company

Balances with related parties:-
Subsidiaries - receivable
Subsidiaries - Payable
Associate - payable

Joint Venture - receivable

Mature of transactions

Purchase of cotton

Purchase of yarn

Sale of lycra

Sale of yarn

Sale of machinery

Purchase of machinery

Purchase of stores, spares and loose tools
Contract manufacturing cost

Payment against issue of right shares
Sale of vehicle

Doubling charges

Purchase of yarn

Sale of yarn

Contract manufacturing cost

Short term borrowing repaid

Shart term bomowing recaived
Expenses paid on behalf of associates
Expenses adjusted / reimbursed

Mature of transactions

Directors and their spouses - payable

Orther related parties:
- Payabile

52

.Company maintained cars and cellular phones are provided to Chief Executive Officer and directors.

2014 2013
Rupees in "000
163,948 -
127 454 143 420
2125 2,145
396,510 -
2,825 1,275
3,680 -
1,273 -
- 52,529
95,000 150,000
- 375
- 121
- 12,285
- 167 612
- 10,302
8,490 113,248
- 117,515
- 231
5 1,979
2014 2013
Rupees in '000
- 8,080
249 884 -
137 627
- 13,205
- 9,490
3,170 2,641




29.

384

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's financial risk
management. The responsibility includes developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies To assist the

Board in discharging its oversight responsibility. management has been made responsible for identifying, monitoring and
managing the Company's financial risk exposures,

The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprise long-term financing, short-term borrowings, liabilities against assels
subject to finance lease, trade and other payables and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is o raise finance for the Company's operations. The Company has lpans and advances, trade and other receivables,
cash and bank balances and short-term deposits that arrive directly from its operations, The Company also holds long-term and
short term investments, and enters into derivative transactions.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company’s exposure to the risks associated with the financial instruments and the risk management policies and procedures
are summarised as follows:

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur
a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of
counter parties are angaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk
indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance 10 developments affecting a particular industry. The Company
doas not have any significant exposure to customers fram any single country or single customer,

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from trade debts, loans and advances and bank balances. The carrying amaunt of
financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as
follows:

2014 2013
Rupees in "000

Long-term deposits 4,105 4,069
Trade debts 1,525,774 1,016,143
Loans and advances 13,254 9,471
Trade deposits 683 -
Other receivables 29,813 24 946
Bank balances 39,165 137 408
1,612,794 1,192 037

The trade debts are due from foreign and local customers for export and local sales respectively. Trade debts from foreign
customers are secured against letters of credit. Management assesses the credit quality of local and foreign customers, taking
into account their financial position, past experience and other factars. As at the balance sheet date, there are no past due frade
debt balances.

Credit risk related to equity investments and cash deposits
The Company limits its exposure to credit risk of investments by only investing in listed securities of highly reputed Companies

having good stock exchange rating. Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by Finance
Directar in accordance with the Company's policy

33




39.2

39.21

The credit risk on liquid funds (cash and bank balances) is limited because the counter parties are banks with a reasonably high credit rating the
names and credit raling of major banks where the Company maintains its bank balances are as follows:

Mame of bank Rating Credit rating
agency Long-term  Short-term

Aled Bank Limited PACRA Ab+ Al+
Askari Commercial Bank Limited PACRA AR Al+
Bank Alfalah Limiled PACRA Al Al+
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited PACRA A Al
Barclays Bank Moody's A2- P-1
Dubai Islamic Bank (Pakistan) Limited JCR-VIS A Ad
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS AAA Al+
Habib Metro Bank Limited PACRA Ab+ Al+
Indusirial and Commercial Bank of China Moody's Al P-1
J.5. Bank Limited PACRA At Al
KASB Bank Limited ; PACRA BBB AZ
Meezan Bank Limited JCR-VIS Ay A+
MCE Bank Limited PACRA ABA Al+
Malional Bank of Pakistan JCR-VIS AAA Al+
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA A A+
Standard Chartered Bank Pakistan Limited PACRA AR A+
The Bank of Punjab Limited PACRA Al A+
United Bank Limited JCR-VIS AL+ Al+

Liquidity risk management

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be
required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or would have difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with
financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meel
expected working capital requirements (refer note 12). The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilies, including
interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

Liguidity and interest risk table
The: following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tablas have

bean drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can
be required to pay.

Carrying Values  Coniractual Less than 1 month 1 to 3 months 3 months to 1 year 1-5 yoars

Cash Flows
B - T 1 -

Trade and olher payakbles TEE, 240 532,203 632,203

Long-term financing 2,296,352 2,694,951 3485 10,314 539,058 2,142,085
Shari-1eem bomoengs 3,281,930 3,281,930 303,010 2,958,520

Inferest  mark-up payable 81,358 81,358 91,384

2014 5418, TR 6,600,443 1,030,087 2,965,234 539,058 2,142,095
Trada anrd ather payatblas 451,385 481,385 461,385

Long-ieem fnancing 821,714 1,128,650 51,311 58,163 F32,3585 TBEBIT
Sherl-lanm bomawings 1,067,200 1,097,290 1.057.200

Imermst ! mark-up payable 25707 28707 25,707

2013 2508095 2712071 1635,692 58,166 232,385 THE.817

The effective rate of interests on non derivative financial liabilities are disclosed in respective notes.



39.3.1

39.2.2

The exposure of the Company's borrowings to interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates at

the balance sheet dates are as follows:

6 months or less

- Short-term bomowings

- Long-term loans

- Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

2014 2013
Rupees in "000
3,261,930 1,097,250
2273831 878,503
- 2,222

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect
the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is 1o
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimising returns.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate risk arises from long and short-term borrowings from financial institutions. At
ihe balance sheet date the interest rate risk profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments is:

Carrying amount
2014 2013
Rupees in '000
Fixed rate instruments

Financial assels - 7.676
Financial liabilities 22421 g
Variable rate instruments

Financial liabilities

- KIBOR based 2,576,841 1,318,073
- LIBOR based 2,958,920 691,441

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities. Therefore, a change in interest rate al the
reporting date would not affect profit and loss account.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were heid constant, the Company's profit for the
year ended June 30, 2014 would decrease / increase by Rs. 26.175 million (2013: Rs. 9.84 million) determined on the
outstanding balance at year end. This is mainly attributable to the Company's exposure to interest rates on its variable rate
borrowings,

Foreign exchange risk management

Exposure to currency risk

2014 013
Rupees US Dollar Rupees USs Dollar
Currency in '000

Trade debts 1,127,513 11,439 423,928 4,291
Foreign currency loans 2,958,920 30,018 691,441 6,998

4,086,432 41,457 1,115,379 11,289

2014 2012
Rupees

Average rate 102.89 95.72
Balance sheet date rate 88.57 98.80

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into |
foreign currencies. The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings, which, are entered in
a currency other than Pak Rupees, The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover its exposure to foreign
currency sales and receivables.

At June 30, 2014, if the Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the US dollar with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs. 81.56 million {2013: Rs 13.38 million) determined on the outstanding
balance at year end. Profit / (loss) is maore sensitive to movement in Rupee / foreign currency exchange rates in 2014 than 2013
because of high fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rate.
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39.3.3

9.4

39.5

Equity price risk management

The Company's listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk ansing from uncertainties about future
values of the investment securities. The Company manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limils on
individual and total equity instrumenls. Reports on the equity portfolic are submitted to the Company's senior management on a
regular basis. The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.

At the balance sheet date, the Company have exposure of Rs. 13.476 million (2013: Rs. 13.476 million) to listed equity securities
of an associate which is held for strategic rather than trading purpose. The Company does not actively trade these securities.

At the balance sheet date, the Company have exposure of Rs. 3,576 million {2013: Rs. 990 million) to unlisted equity securities
of subsidiaries which are held for strategic rather than trading purpose. At the balance sheet date, the exposure to listed equity
securities at fair value was Rs.144.56 million (2013: Rs.13.46 million). A decrease / increase of 5% in market prices would have
an impact of approximately Rs. 7.23 million (2013: Rs. 0.67 million) determined based on market value of investments at year
end.

Determination of fair values

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settied, between knowledgeable willing parties in an
amns length transaction other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the unconsolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

Financial instruments by category

Loan & Fair value through Total
advances profit & loss
account
------------------ Rupees in 000 - - - = --eemmmucaas

Assets as per balance shaet
- June 30, 2014
Long-term deposits 4,105 - 4105
Trade debls 1,525,774 - 1,625,774
Loans and advances 13,254 - 13,254
Trade deposits BB3 - 683
Other receivables 28,813 - 28,813
Other financial assets - 144 568 144,566
Bank balances 44,303 - 44 303

1,617,932 144,568 1,762,498
Assets as per balance sheot
=June 30, 2013
Long-term depaosits 4,068 - 4 059
Trade debis 1,016,143 - 1,016,143
Leans and advances 9,471 - 9471
Trade deposits - - .
Cther receivables 24,946 - 24 9485
Other financial assets - 13,464 13,464
Bank balances 142,276 - 142,276

1,196,905 13,464 1,210,369

Financial liabilities
moaasured at Total

amortized cost
Liabilities as per balance sheat

- June 30, 2014 Rupees in "000

Long-term financing 2,286,252 2,296,252

Trade and other payables T€6,240 766,240

Short-lerm borrowings 3,261,930 3,261,930

Interest / mark-up payable 91,159 91,359
6,415,781 6,415,781

Liabilities as per balance sheet
-June 30, 2013

Long-term financing 921,714 921,714
Trade and other payables 451,385 461,385
Short-term borrowings 1,087,290 1,097,290
subject to finance lease 2222 2,222
Interast / mark-up payable 25,707 25,707
2,508,318 2,508,318
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40.

41.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the financial instruments have been analysed in various fair value levels as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on cbservable market data (unobservable
inputs).
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

----------------- -Rupges in"000 - == =r=--evenrnno--

Other financial assets 144 566 - - 144 566
Other financial liability 3 - 2

Total 144,566 - - 144 566

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Company when managing capital, i.e, its sharsholders’ equity is to safeguard its ability to continue as a
going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a
strong capital base to support the sustained development of its businesses

The Company manages its capital structure by monitaning return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the hght of
changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividend paid to shareholders or 1ssue new shares

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratic is calculated as
net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ as
shown in the balance shest) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the balance sheet
plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at June 30, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

2014 2013
Rupees in '000

Total borrowings (note 7.8 & 12) 5,558,182 2021226
Less: cash and bank balances (note 25) (44,303) (142 278)
Net debt 5,513,879 1,678,950
Total equity 9,325,254 B.225472
Total capital 14,839,133 10,104, 422
Gearing ratio 37% 19%
CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
Spinning units 2014 2013
Total number of spindles installed 172712 146,112
Total number of spindles worked per annurm (average) 167,107 142 105
Number of shifis worked per day 3 3
Installed capacity of yarn converted into

20 counts based on 365 days (Ibs.) 121,086,982 110,108,515
Actual production for the year after conversion into 20 counts (lbs. ) 111,960,608 95,738 B56
Ginning units 2014 2013
Installed capacity to produce cotton bales 135,000 135,000
Agctual production of cotton bales 19,723 19,108
Number of shifts 2 2
Capacity attained in (%) 14 61% 14.15%
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43.

45,

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company's core business is manufacturing and sale of yarm and it generates more than 90% of its revenue and profit from
the production and sale of yarn Decision making process is centralized at head office lead by Chief Executive Officer who
continuously involves in day to day operations and regularly reviews operating results and assesses its performance and makes
necessary decisions about rescurces to be allocated to the segments. Currently the Company has three yam manufacturing
units at Hyderabad, Karachi and Muzafarghar. Owing to the similanty in nature of the products and services, nature of the
production processes, type or class of customers for the products and services, the methods used to distribute the products and
the nature of the regulatory envircnment, all the yarn producing units are aggregated into a single operating segment and the
Company's performance is evaluated by the management on an overall basis, therefore these operational segments by location
are not separately reportable segments. The Company also holds investments in equity shares of listed Companies, investment
in an associated company and in two wholly owned subsidianes (refer note 15).

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The total average number of employees during the year as at June 30, 2014 and 2013 are respectively as follows:

MNo. of employees

2014 2013
Average number of employees during the year 2,335 2,205
Mumber of employees as at June 30, 2014 243 2,239

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR 1SSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements have been authorised for issue on October 03, 2014 by the Board of Directors of the
Company

GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees
an& 3

Shahzad Ahmed Naveed Ahmed
Chief Executive Director
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Key Operating and Financial Results.

Oparating data
Tumover

Less : Commission expense

Sales (net)
Gross profit
Profit before tax
Profit after tax

Financial data
Gross assets employed

Return on equity
Current assets
Shareholders equity

Long term debts and deferred
liabilities

Current liabilities

Kay ratios
Gross profit ratio

MNet profit ratio

Debt / equity ratio

Current ratio

Eaming per share { basic and diluted )

Dividend { percentage )
- Cash

- Stock

- Specie dividend

Statistics

Production volume ( tons )

012
15,583,895
(198,399)

15,385 496
2,252618
1,780,888
1.571.477

10,938,552
21.28%
4,311,122
7,384,527
1,187,985

2,366,040

14 64%

10.21%
07 :83
1.82
86.95

350%

42 057

61

2013

20,375,904
(353,707)

20,022,197
3,630,687
2,523,383
2,547,734

12,698,532
28.51%
5,826,529
8,936,904
808,605

2,950,413

18.13%
12.72%
12: 88

1.97
140.96

100% Int

100:09

52,894

2014

24,301,493
(267 068)

24,034 425
2,487,947
1,866,427
1,996,643

20,272,036
18.75%
9,316,161
10,646,575
2,395,176

7,227 675

10.35%
B.31%
16: 84
1.29
110.47

150%

63,821




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising consolidated balance
sheet of Indus Dyeing & Manufacturing Company Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiary
companies (together the Group) as at June 30, 2014 and the related consolidated profit and loss
account, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated cash flow statement and
consolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year
then ended. We have also expressed separate opinion on the financial statements of the Holding
Company and a subsidiary company namely Indus Lyallpur Limited. The financial statements of a
subsidiary Indus Home Limited which were audited by other firm of auditors whose report has been
furnished to us and our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included for such subsidiary is
based solely on the report of such other auditors. The financial statements of a subsidiary, Indus
Home USA Inc. (Subsidiary of Indus Home Limited) are unaudited. These consclidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Holding Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consclidated financial statements based on our audit.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards of Auditing and accordingly
included such tests of accounting records and such other audit procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly the financial position of the Group

as at June 30, 2014 and the results of their operations for the year then ended.

Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner:
Nadeem Yousuf Adil

Date: October 03, 2014
Place: Karachi
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INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT JUNE 30, 2014

2014 2013 2014 2013
Note Rupees in."000 MNote Rupees In ‘000
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ASSETS
Share capital and reserves Non current assets
Authonised
45,000,000 ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each 450,000 450,000
Isgued, subscribad and paid up
capital & 180,737 180,737  Property, plant and equipment 15 10,916,338 5,470,659
Resarvas Fi 5,022,400 5,022,432 Long-term invesimants 18 24,198 1,396,305
Unappropriated profit 5,443,438 3733735 Long-term deposits 17 15,338 5038
10,646,575 8,936,804 10,555 875 5,872 003
SHARE OF ASSOCIATE'S
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION
OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT - net of tax 2,610 2810
Mon current liabilities
Long-tesm financing 4 2. 162,009 500,368

Current assets

Deferred kabilities 10 233,167 118,236

Stores. spares and loose tools 18 586,753 231,354
2,395,176 BERERe Stock-in-Irade 19 5,712,763 4,027,035
Current liabilities
Trage debls 20 1,954,394 1,129,122
Loans and advances 21 285,637 114,251
Trade and other payables " 1,250,904 B38.134
Trade deposits and
Interest | mark-up payable 12 124,960 31,200 shar-term propayments 22 4,786 T.784
Sheart-terrm bomowings 13 5,011,045 1,847,512 | Other recewables 23 93,702 26,384
Current portion of: Others financial assels 24 164,223 13,464
lang-term financing 8 740,765 231,345 | Tax refundable 25 423,263 132,916
liabilties against assets
subject to finance lease ] . 2,222 | Cash and bank balances 26 84,540 144,239
7,227,675 2,950,413 5,216,161 5,826 520
CONTINGENCIES AND 14
COMMITMENTS
20,272,036 12,898,532 20,272,036 12,698,532

The annexed nates from 110 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Wnﬂ&h lotees. N

Shahzad Ahmed Naveed Ahmed
Chief Exacutive Director
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INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Mote
Sales - net 27
Cost of goods sold 28
Gross profit
Other income 29
Distribution cost a0
Administrative expenses 31
Other operating expenses 32
Finance cost 33
Share of loss from joint venture - net of tax 18.1
Share of profit from associate - net of tax 16.2
Gain on remeasurement of previously held interest in IHL . 52
Bargain purchase gain on acquisition of IHL 5
Loss on investment in associate distributed to

owners as specie dividend

Profit before taxation
Taxation 34
Profit for the year- attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Holding company
Earnings per share - basic and diluted IE-E

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

F oA stimae

Shahzad Ahmed
Chief Executive

64

2014 2013
(Restated)
Rupeeas in '000
24,034 425 20,022 197
(21,546.478) (16,391,510)
2,487,947 3,630,687
222332 22,395
2,710,279 3,653,082
(606,333) (430,696)
(301,257) {208,304)
(105,440) (281,043)
(620,077) (343, 138)
(1,533,107) (1,263,179)
1177172 2,389,903
(41,525) 61,469
2,796 74 109
388,056 -
338,928
- {2.088)
689,255 133.480
1,866,427 2,523,383
130,216 24,351
1,996,643 2,547 734
(Restated)
110.47 140.96

Meteo  Ne—

Naveed Ahmed

Director




INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Profit for the year (as restated)

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
Exchange loss on translation of foreign subsidiary

ltarns that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability -net of tax

Total other comprehensive income for the year- attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Holding company ;

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these consaolidated financial statemeanis,

2014 2013
(Restated)
Rupees in "000
1,996,643 2,547 734
{32)
(15,779) (13.923)
1,980,832 2,533,811

F oA strmed- P oot N ol

Shahzad Ahmed
Chief Executive
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MNaveed Ahmed
Director




INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Tapial Ratalees Feavanue
suad, s Eachangs
submcribed and i ::I?:: Ganaral reasrve iransakation ppepsivian Total
paid up capital - ronarvy
T Ropet
Balance a1 Jume 30, 2012 180,737 10,430 11,812 000, 000 Lk 7,304,517
Comprahaniive income for the vaar;
Proiit bar Lhe year (88 reslated) 2.547 734 2.5847 734
O#har comprahansse incoma for ihe year (s 113,823} (VA E2E)
festabed) Nale 4 21
Tolsl GOmpraneni nComa Tor 1he year 2538 25180
Anacoanle's snare of Surbius on revaliabon of orooerty
plant and eguipment on account of moremenial deprecalion
- Pl of Gaermad Tk 1.40% 1.489
Transactions with owners recorded directly In aguity;
Final cash dradand for the year ended Jure 30 2012

Ra 20 par shamn (381, 475) 361 475,
Enbanm deacend in 3pacs 107 the pancd ended Decambsar 31

2012 in 10000 rebo (note 18.2) - 1433, 181} {439,191}
Inbgnm cash dividend for the penod ended March 31 2013 @

F3 10 par shane T 180,737} {180 73T}

Cost of msus of shares 11,500} {1.5004
Balance sl Juns 30, 2013 188,737 10,520 11,512 5,000, 000 3T1LTIE 8,535,904
Comprehensive inComa for the year;
IProfil Tor tha yaar - 1.996 643 1,506 643
Exchanos lass on iransiabon of forsson subsiciary £ 32} = [32)
Cither comonshansive ncoma for tha vear " { (15,779
Total comprhanshe income ior the year - 32y 1,960,564 1,880,832
Associale's sham of swplus on revehetion of property,

jplant and squipmend on sccount of incremental depreciation

- il of dalemed bax 245 2486
Transactions with owners ecorded directy in sguity:
Interim cash dividend for the penod ended September 31, 2013

i@ Rs. 5 per share {90,369) (40, 365)
Interim cash dividend for B period endod December 31, 2013

i@ Rs. 10 per share - (1B0.737) (180, 737)
Cost of issua of shams 30} {301}
Balance ot June 30, 1014 180,737 18,820 11,512 B, 000,000 32 5.443.433 10,64E 575

The e retes from 1 1o 45 form an inteqral part of these consoldated financsl slalemenls.

f oAt

Shahzad Ahmed
Chief Executive

Haveed Ahmed

Director



INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Mote

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 36
Taxes paid - net

Finance cost paid

Gratuity paid

Net cash generated from operating aclivities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for acquisition of subsidiary - net of cash and running finance acquired

Payment for purchase of items of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant and equipment 15.2
Purchase of other financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets

Payment for long-term deposits

Dividend received

Met cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term finance obtained f repaid -net

Loans from directors - net

Repayment of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Cost of issue of shares

Dividend paid

Net cash generated / {used in) from financing activities

Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year T

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements

W“’“‘"‘g‘ W_,

Shahzad Ahmed
Chief Executive
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2014

2013

(Restated)

Rupees in '000

821,243 2,045,800
(110,700)  (237,481)
(426,317)  (346,525)

(62,900) (21,458)
221,326 1440336
(1,611,522) .
(2,652,726)|| (1.064.420)
58,055 11,437
(123,361) -
- 2,000
(3,585) (448)
1,151 19,440
(4,331,988)  (1,031,989)
1,021,551 {99,664)
(9,490) 4,026
{2,222) (4,646)
(301) {1,500}
(298,019)|| (521,079
711,519 (622,863)
(3,399,143) (214,516)
(1,693,783)  (1.479,267)
166,520 .
(4,926,406)  (1693783)
N

Naveed Ahmed
Director




1.2

INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

The “Group" consists of Indus Dyeing & Manufacturing Company Limited (the Holding Company), its subsidiaries and an
associate.

Holding Company

Indus Dyeing & Manufacturing Company Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on July 23, 1957 as a
public limited Company under the Companies Act 1913 repealed by the Companies Ordinance, 1984 Registered office of the
Holding Company is situated at Office No. 508, 5th floor, Beaumont Plaza, Civil Lines, Karachi. The Holding Company is
currently listed on Karachi Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity of the Holding Company is manufacturing and sale of
yam. The manufacturing facilities of the Holding Company are located in Karachi, Hyderabad and Muzaffargarh. The Holding
Company is also operating two ginning units including one on leasing arrangements in District Multan

Subsidiary Companies

Indus Lyallpur Limited - 100% owned

Indus Lyallpur Limited (the Subsidiary Company) is an unlisted public company limited by shares, incorporated in Pakistan on
April 25, 1982 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Principal business of the Subsidiary Company is manufacturing and
sale of yarn. Mill is located at 38th kilometer, Shaikhupura road, District Faisalabad in the province of Punjab. Registered office
of the Subsidiary Company is situated at Office No. 508, 5th floor, Beaumont Plaza, Civil Lines, Karachi. The Holding
Company acquired 71,540,000 ordinary shares representing hundred percent of paid up capital of the Subsidiary Company &
6.85 per share for aggregate consideration of Rs. 430 million on January 31, 2012,

Indus Home Limited - 100% owned

Indus Home Limited (the Subsidiary Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited Company on May 18, 2006
under the Companies Ordinance 1984, The registered office of the Company is located at 174 Abu Bakar Block, New Garden
Town, Lahore. Principal business activities of the Subsidiary Company are to manufacture and export the greige and finished
terry cloth and other textile products. The manufacturing facility of the Company is located at Manga Mandi, Lahaore. On
November 21, 2013, the Holding Company acquired 75 million shares of Indus Home Limited from WestPoint Pakistan LLC for
an aggregate purchase consideration of USD 12 million. As a result of the acquisition, the Holding Company acquired
controlling interest in Indus Home Limited by way of 100% ownership.

Indus Home USA Inc. {100% owned through Indus Home Limited)

Indus Home USA Inc. has been established during the year. The principal business activities of the Company is to act as
commission agent to generate sales order in textile sector.

Assoclated Company

Sunrays Textile Mills Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on August 27, 1987 as a public limited company under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 and its shares are quoted on the Karachi Stock Exchange. The Company is principally engaged
in trade, manufacture and sale of yarn. The Company is also operating a ginning unit and an ice factory on leasing
arrangements, The registered office of the Company is situated at Karachi. The mill is located at District Muzaffargarh, Dera
Ghazi Khan Division, in the province of Punjab. The Holding Company has 0.99% voting rights in the Company and it is
regarded associate due to common directorship.

Basis of Consolidation

- The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and an
associate company together - "the Group”.

- Subsidiary companies are fully consolidated from the date on which more than 50% of voting rights are transferred to
the Group or power to control the company is established and excluded from consolidation from the date of
disposal or when the control is lost

- The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as of the Holding Company for the
purpose of consolidation, using consistent accounting policies.

- The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consclidated on a line by line basis.
- Material inter-group balances and transactions have been eliminated.

- Non-Controlling Interest in equity of the subsidiary companies are measured at fair value as of the acquisition date of
the subsidianes.
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Business Combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Holding Company, liabilities incurred by the Holding Company to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Company in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related cosls are recognised in
profit and loss account as incurred,

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit and loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the Group’s
net assets in the event of liquidation is measured at fair value at the date of the acquisition.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions of or
directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

Basis of preparation
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by

- recognition of certain employee retirement benefits at net present value,
- certain financial instruments at fair value.

Mew accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30,
2014:

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2014. These standards,
interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Group's operations or are not expected to have significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements other than certain additional disclosures,

Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financlal Statements - Effective from accounting period beginning on

Clarification of Requirements for Com par'ntiw.- information or after January 01, 2013
This improvement clarifies the difference between voluntary additional comparative information and the minimum required
comparative information. Generally, the minimum required comparative information is the previous period.

Amendments to |IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment - Effective from accounting period beginning on
Classification of servicing equipment or after January 01, 2013

This improvement clarifies that major spare parts and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment are not inventory.

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Tax
effects of distributions to holders of an equity instrument, and Effective from accounting period beginning on
transaction costs of an equity transaction or after January 01, 2013

This improvement clarifies that income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders are accounted for in accordance with
145 12 Income Taxes.



Amendments to IAS 34 - Intzrim Financial Reporting - Interim Effective from accounting period beginning on
reporting of segment information for total assets and total
liahilities or after January 01, 2013
The amendment aligns the disclosure requirements for total segment assets with total segment liabilities in interim financial
statements. This clarification also ensures that interim disclosures are aligned with annual disclosures

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Effective from accounting period beginning on
or after January 01, 2013
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

These amendments require an entity to disclose information about nghts to set-off and related arrangements (e.g., collateral
agreements). The disclosures would provide users with information that is useful in evaluating the effect of netting
arrangements on an entity’s financial position. The new disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments that
are set off in accordance with 1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply to recognised financial
instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective of whether they
are set off in accordance with 1AS 32.

IFRIC 20 - Stripping Costs in the Production Phase Effective from accounting period beginning on
or after January 01, 2013
of a Surface Mine
This interpretation applies to waste removal (stripping) costs incurred in surface mining activity, during the production phase of
the mine. The interpretation addresses the accounting for the benefit from the stripping activity.

New accounting standards and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective:

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the
date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the
Group's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 38 - "Intangible Assets"” and Effective from accounting period beginning on
IAS 16 " Property, plant and Equipment" or after January 01, 2016

These amendments introduces severe restrictions on the use of revenue-based amortization for intangible assets and
explicitly state that revenue-based methods of depreciation cannot be used for property, plant and equipment. The rebuttable
presumption that the use of revenue-based amorization methods for intangible assets are inappropriate can be overcome only
when revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are ‘highly correlated’, or when the
intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue.

Amendments to |AS 41 - "Agriculture” and IAS 16 " Effective from accounting period beginning on
Property, plant and Equipment” or after January 01, 2016

Bearer plants are now in the scope of |IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' for measurement and disclosure purposes.
Therefore, an entity can elect to measure bearer plants at cost. However, the produce growing on bearer plants will continue
to be measured at fair value less costs to sell under IAS 41 'Agriculture’. A bearer plant is a plant that: is used in the supply of
agricultural produce; is expected to bear produce for more than one period; and has a remote likelihood of being sold as
agricultural produce. Before maturity, bearer plants are accounted for in the same way as self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment during construction,

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits: Effective from accounting period beginning on
or after July 01, 2014
Employee contributions

This amendment clarifies the application of I1AS: 18, 'Employee benefits’ (2011) - referred to as 'lAS 19R’, to plans that require
employees or third parties to contribute towards the cost of benefits. The amendment does not affect the accounting for
voluntary contributions. The 2011 revisions to |AS 18 distinguished between employee contributions related to service and
those not linked to service. The current amendment further distinguishes between contributions that are linked to service only
in the period in which they arise and those linked to service in more than one period. The amendment allows contributions that
are linked to service, and do not vary with the length of employee service, to be deducted from the cost of benefits earned in
the period that the service is provided
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IAS 27 (Revised 2011) — Separate Financial Statements Effective from accounting pericd beginning on or
after January 01, 2015. IAS 27 (Revised 2011) will

concurrently apply with IFRS 10.
The revised Standard sets out the requirements regarding separate financial statements only. Most of the requirements in the |
reviced Standard are carried forward unchanged from the previous Standard. The IASB has issued recently the amendment to
IAS 27 wherein it has allowed to follow the equity method in the separate financial statements also. These amendments will be
effective from January 01, 2016 with earlier application allowed.

IAS 28 (Revised 2011) - Investments in Effective from accounting pericd beginning on or
; after January 01, 2015
Associates and Joint Ventures
Similar to the previous Standard, the new Standard deals with how to apply the equity mathod of accounting. However, the
scope of the revised Standard has been changed so that it covers investments in joint ventures as well because IFRS 11
requires investments in joint ventures to be accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Effective from accounting period beginning on or
after January 01, 2014
Offsetting financial assets and financial llabilities
These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off". It will be necessary to assess the
impact to the entity by reviewing settlement procedures and legal documentation to ensure that offsetting is still possible in
cases where it has been achieved in the past. In certain cases, offsetting may no longer be achieved. In other cases, contracts
may have to be renegotiated. The requirement that the right of set-off be available for all counterparties to the netting
agreement may prove to be a challenge for contracts where only one party has the right to offset in the event of default.

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures Effective from accounting period beginning on or
after January 01, 2014
for Non-Financial Assets
The amendments:

- remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit {or group of cash-generating units) to
which a significant amount of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives has been allocated in periods whan no
impairment or reversal has been recognized (this requirement having been inadvertently introduced as part of consequential
amendments on the introduction of IFRS 13; and

- introduce additional disclosure requirements in respect of assets for which an impairment has been recognized or reversed
and for which the recoverable amount is determined using fair value less costs of disoosal.

IAS 339 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Effective from accounting period beginning on ar
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting after January 01, 2014

The amendment allows the continuation of hedge accounting (under IAS 30 and IFRS 8 chapter on hedge accounting) when a
derivative is novated to a clearing counterparty and certain conditioned are met.

IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements Effective from accounting period beginning on or
after January 01, 2014

IFRS 10 replaces the part of IAS 27 Consalidated and Separate Financial Statements that deals with consolidated financial stalements and SIC
12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. Under IFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation for all entities, and thal basis is control.
This change is to remove the perceived inconsistency between the previous version of LAS 27 and SIC 12; the former used a control concept
while the latter placed greater emphasis on risks and rewards. IFRS 10 includes @ more robust definition of control in order to address
unintentional weaknesses of the definition of confrol set out in the previous version of 1AS 27. Specific transitional provisions are given for
enlities that apply IFRS 10 for the first ime. Specifically, entities are required lo make the ‘control' assessment in accordance with IFRS 10 at
the date of initial application, which is the beginning of the annual reporting period for which IFRS 10 is applied for the first lime. No adjustments
are required when the ‘control’ conclusion made al the date of initial application of IFRS 10 is the same before and after the application of IFRS
10. However, adjustments are required when the 'control' conclusion made at the date of initiaapplication of IFRS 10 is different from that before |
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IFRS 11 = Joint Arrangements Effective from accounting period beginning on or
after January 01, 2015

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interest in Joint Ventures and SIC 13 Jaintly Controlled Entities — Non monetary Contributions by
Venturers. IFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement should be classified where two or more parties have joint control. There
are two types of joint arrangements under IFRS 11: joint operations and joint ventures. These two types of joint arrangements
are distinguished by parties’ rights and cbligations under the arrangements. Under IFRS 11, the existence of a separate vehicle
is no longer a sufficient condition for a joint arrangement to be classified as a joint venture whereas, undaer 1AS 31, the
establishment of a separate legal vehicle was the key factor in determining whether a joint arrangement should be classified as
a jointly controlled entity.
IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Effective from accounting period beginning on or
Entities after January 01, 2015

IFRS 12 Is a new disclosure Standard that sets out what entities need to disclose in their annual consolidated financial
statements when they have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates or unconsolidated structured entities
{broadly the same as special purpose entities under SIC 12). IFRS 12 aims to provide users of financial statements with
infarmation that helps evaluate the nature of and risks assoclated with the reporting entity's interest in other entities and the
effects of thosa interests on its financial statements.

IFRS 13 = Fair Value Measurament Effective from accounting period beginning on or
after January 01, 2015

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
IFRS 13 does not change the requirements regarding which items should be measured or disclosed at fair value, The scope of
IFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which other IFRSs require
or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified circumstances. IFRS 13
gives a new definition of fair value for financial reporting purposes. Fair value under IFRS 13 is defined as the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market
at the measurement date under current market condition (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. IFRS 13 should be applied prospectively as of the beginning of the
annual period in which it is initially applied.
IFRIC 21 - Lavies Effective from accounting period beginning on or
after January 01, 2014

IFRIC 21 defines a levy as a payment to a government for which an entity receives no specific goods or services. A liability is
recognised when the obligating event occurs. The obligating event is the activity that triggers payment of the levy. This is
typically specified in the legislation that imposes the levy.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has
also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 8 - Financial Instruments

- IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

- IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of consclidated financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use of judgment that affect the application of policies and
the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Estimates and judgments, if any, are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consoclidated financial statements or where judgment was exercised in
application of accounting policies are as follows:

- Provision for current tax and deferred tax (Mote 10.1 and 34)
- Provigion for staff retirement benefits (Note 10.2-10.4)

- Depreciation rates of property, plant and equipment (Note 15.1)

- Classification and impairment of investment (Note 16 and 24)

- Met realisable value of stock-in-trade (Mote 19)

- Provision for impairment of trade debts and other receivables (Mote 20.4)
- Fair value of net assets acquired in business combination (Note 5)
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4.2

4.21

4.2.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
Taxation
Current

Provision for cumrent taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams of the Group under presumptive / final tax regime
at the applicable tax rates remaining taxable income at the current rates of taxation under normal tax regime after taking into
account tax credits and rebates available, if any, or on turnover at the specified rate or Alternative Corporate Tax as defined in
section 113C of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher.

Deferred

Deferred income tax is recognised using balance sheet liability method for all major temporary differences arising between tax
bases of assets and liabiliies and their camying amounts in the financial statements,

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that tax profits and taxable temporary differences will be available against which deductible
tempaorary differences can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits and taxable temporary differences will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. The effect of deferred taxation of the portion of the
income subject to final tax regime is also considered in accordance with the requirement of Technical Release - 27 of Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan,

Staff retirement benefit
Defined benefit plan
The Holding Company

The Holding Company operates unfunded gratuity schame cavering all its employees who have completed minimum qualifying
period. Provisions are determined based on the actuarial valuation conducted by a qualified actuary using Projected Unit Credit
Method. Under this method cost of providing for gratuity is charged to profit and loss account so as to spread the cost over the
service lives of the employees in accordance with the actuarial valuation. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
profit and loss account and actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

Indus Lyallpur Limited

The Company operates unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its emplayees who have completed minimum qualifying period
Provisions are determined based on the actuarial valuation conducted by a qualified actuary using Projected Unit Credit
Method. Under this method cost of providing for gratuity is charged to profit and loss account 5o as to spread the cost over the
service lives of the employees in accordance with the actuarial valuation. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
profit and loss account and actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

Indus Home Limited

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its employees who are eligible under the scheme. Provision is
made annually to cover the liability under the scheme. Future contribution rate of this scheme includes allowances for surplus’
and deficit. The latest actuarial valuation was carried on 30 June 2014, using projected unit credit method, The company’s
policy with regard to actuarial gains / losses is to follow minimum recommended approach under IAS 19 "Employee Benefits”,

Compensated absences

The Group provides for compensated absences of its employees on unavailed balance of leaves in the period in which the
leaves are eamed.
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4.4.1

4.4.2

4.4.3

4.5

4.51

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts pa-,rablaarenamedatmnwhmisumfadrvaluaafm-amnsid&mﬁontubapabdin'ma
mmmfmgoudsandserﬁmmceiuadvﬂwtharbiﬂedmmeﬁmmumt

Property, plant and equipment
Owned

Property, plant and equipment owned by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss if
any, except freehold and leasehold land. Depreciation is charged to income using the reducing balance method whereby cost
of an asset is written-off over its estimated useful life at the rates given in note 15.1.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are axpected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is recognised in the profit and loss account in the year
the asset is derecognised.

In respect of additions and disposals during the year, depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition and upto the month
preceding the disposal respectively.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item car bDe
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to income during the year in which they are incurred.

Gains and losses on disposal of assets, if any, are recognized as and when incurred.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance
sheet dale.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) is stated at cost. All expenditures connected to the specific assets incurred during the
installation and construction period are carried under CWIP. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are
ready for their intended use.

Assets subject to finance lease

Assets subject to finance lease are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, o, where
sharter, over the term of the relevant lease.

Impairment

Financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset or a group of asset is impaired. If any
indication exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the assets recoverable
amount. An asset's recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and its value in use. Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discontinued to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specified to the assets.
In determining fair value less cost to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Gruup assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired If, and only if, there is an
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an |

incurred “loss event ') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of thefinancial
asset or the group of financial assets carried at amortized cost are recognized in profit and loss account.
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4.9

4.91

Non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that assets except deferred tax assets and
inventories may be impaired. If such indication exists, the camying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where camrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount,
assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairmant loss is recognized in profit and loss account.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amartisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Leases
As lessee

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Asszets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance
sheet as liabilties against assets subject to finance lease. The liabilities are classified as current and long-term depending
upon the timing of payment. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the liabilities against
assets subject to finance lease so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are charged lo income, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in
accordance with the Group's general policy on bormowing costs,

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, determined on moving average cost method less allowance for
obsolete and slow moving items. Items in transit are valued at invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon. Net
realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessarily to be incurred in
order to make the sale.

Stock in trade

Stock in trade is valued at cost accumulated to the balance sheet date, is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value
applying the following basis: .

Basis of valuation

Raw matenal Weighted average cost

Work in progress Weighted average cost of material and share of
applicable overheads

Finished goods Weighted average cost of material and share of
applicable overheads

Packing material Moving average cost

Waste and scrap Met realizable value

Stock in transit Accumulated cost till balance sheet date

Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and
estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are camied at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful receivables based
on review of indicators as discussed in note 4.5.2. Balances considered bad and irrecoverable are written off when identified,

Provislon for doubtful receivables

Provision for doubtful debts and receivables are estimated at each year end on the basis of events and conditions surrounding
their recoverability and are being set-off from their respactive amounts.
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4.10.2

4.10.3

4.10.4

Investments
Regular way purchase or sale of investments

All purchases and sales of investments are recognised using settlement date accounting. Setlement date is the date that the
investments are delivered to or by the Group.

Investment in associate

Associate is an entity over which the Holding Company has significant influence, but not contral, generally accompanying a
shareholding of 20% to 50% of the voting rights or common directorship.

Such investments are accounted for using equity method of accounting and initially are recognized at cost and subsequently
adjusted to recognize the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group's share of losses exceeds its interest, the carrying amount of that interest is reduced to nil and the recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investae

Investment in Joint venture

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint
control, and a jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that involves the establishment of a separate entity in which each
venturer has an interest.

The Group recognises its interest in the joint venture using equity method of accounting. Investment in joint venture is initially
recognized at cost and subsequently adjusted to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture. When the Group's shares of losses exceeds its interest, the carrying amount of that interest is
reduced to zero and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or
has made payments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading

An investment that is acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term fluctuations in prices is classified
as "fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading”.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss account
upon initial recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

- the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's risk management, or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried “at fair value
through profit or loss'. Financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or loss' are initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Subsequent to initial recognition, equity securities designated by the management as 'at fair value through profit or loss’ are
valued on the basis of closing quoted market prices available at the stock exchange.

All investments are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Met gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or loss' are
taken to the profit and loss account.
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4.10.5 Derivative financial instruments
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Derivatives are initially recorded at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are remeasured to fair value
at subsequent reporting dates. Derivatives with positive impact at balance sheet date are included in "other financial assels'
and with negative impacts in 'trade and other payable' in the balance sheet. The resultant gains and losses are included in
other income/ other operaling expenses.

Derivatives financial instruments entered into by the Group do not meet the hedging criteria as defined by IAS 39, Financial
Instruments: 'Recognition and Measurement’. Consequently hedge accounting is not used by the Group.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assals,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred,
Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group's functional and presentation
currency. Transactions in other than Pakistani Rupee are translated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the date of trangactions except for those covered by forward contracts, which are translated at contracted rates. At each
balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date except for those covered by forward contracts, which are stated at contracted rates.

Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in profit or loss account.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. However, provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and is recognised on the
following basis:

- Sales are recorded when the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the customers
which concide with the dispatch of goods to the customers.

- Income on bank deposits are recorded on time proportionate basis using effective interest rate.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Financial instruments

All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument and derecognised when the Group loses control of the contractual rights that comprise of the financial assets and in
case of financial liability when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Other particular
recognition methods adopted by the Group are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item of
financial instruments.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the Group has a legal right
to offset the recognized amounts and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, balances with banks on current, savings
and deposit accounts and short-term borrowings excluding loans from directors and their spouses.
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Dividend distribution

Cash dividend

Dividend distribution to the Group's sharehalders is recognised as a liability in the consolidated financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Group’s shareholders/directors as appropriate.

Specie dividend

Distribution of specie dividend to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in these consolidated financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group's shareholders/ directors at the fair value of the
assels to be distributed. At the end of the reporting period, the management reviews and adjusts the camrying value of the
dividend payable, with any changes in carrying amount to be recognised in equity. When the Group settles the liability, any
difference between the camying amount of the assets distributed and the camying amount of the dividend payable is
recognised in profit and loss account.

Export rebate, research and development support and local taxes rebate

Export rebate and research and development support are recognized when these become due and there is
reasonable assurance that these will be received.

Eamings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable ta ordinary
shareholders of the Holding Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Change in accounting policy
IAS 18 - Employee Benefits {as revised in 2011)

In the current year, the group has adopted 1AS 19 Employees Benefits (as revised in 2011) along with related consequential
amendments.

The revised IAS 18 changes the accounting for defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The most significant change
relates to the accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations and plan assets. The amendments require the
recognition of changes in defined benefit obligations and in the fair value of plan assets when they occur, and hence
eliminate the ‘corridor approach’ permitted under the previous version of IAS 19 and accelerate the recognition of past
service costs. All actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately through other comprehensive income in order for
the gratuity assets or liability recognized in the balance sheet to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus.
Furthermare, the interest cost and expected retumn on plan assets used in previous version of IAS 19 are replaced with a
'net interest’ amount under IAS 19 (as revised in 2011}, which is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit liability or assets. In addition, IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) introduce certain changes in the presentation of the defined
benefit cost including more extensive disclosures.

Specific transitional provisions are applicable to the first-time application of 1AS 19 (as revised in 2011). The Group has
applied the relevant transitional provisions and restated the comparative amounts on retrospective basis in accordance with
IAS B8 — ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’. Previously the Group recognised acluarial gains
/ losses in profit and loss account. However, as a result of adoption of revised IAS-19, the effect of remeasurement is
directly recognised in other comprehensive income. The effect of change in accounting policy for the year ended June 30,
2012 was not material, therefore, third balance sheet for the year 2012 has not been presented. The effect of retrospective
application of change in accounting policy is as follows:
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Amount as Effect of Amount

reported change in  as restated
earlier accounting
policy
-- Rupees in "000 ———mmmmmreeenes
For the year ended June 30, 2013
Effect on profit and loss account
Cost of goods sold 16,402,510 (11,000) 16,391,510
Administrative axpenses 211,227 (2,923) 208,304
16,613,737 (13,923) 16,599,814
Profit after taxation 2,533,811 13,823 2,547,734
Eamings per share 140.19 0.74 140.93
Effect on Statement of Comprehensive Income
Other comprehensive income for the year - 13,823 {13,923)

The effect of restatement has not been incorporated from Indus Home Limited because the company was acquired during
the year. The effect of restatement in Indus Lyallpur Limited was not material, therefore not effect has been incorporated.

5. BUSINESS COMBINATION

During the year the Holding Company has acquired the entire shareholding of WestPaint Pakistan LLC in Indus Home
Limited (The Joint venture) comprising of 75 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each representing 50% of total issued share
capital of Indus Home Limited at aggregate purchase consideration of USD 12 million { Rs. 1,293 million ) thus making it a
wholly owned subsidiary. The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary as at the date of acquisition
date i.e. November 21, 2013 and corresponding carrying values immediately before the acquisition were as follows:

Fair value
recognized Carrying
on value
acquisition
Rupees in "000
Non curmrent assets
Property plant and equipment 3,651,588 2873337
Long term deposil and defermred cost 6,714 6,715
3,658,302 2,880,051

Current assets
Stock in trade 859 581 858,581
Stores, spares and loose tools 240,238 240,238
Trade debtors 48,464 48,464
Advances, deposits, prepayment and other receivables 219,450 219,450
Sales tax refundable 92,848 02,848
Cash and bank balances 6,578 6,578

1,467,160 1,467,160
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Current llabilities

Short term bank borrowings

Current portion of long term loans
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Provision for taxation

Non current liabilities
Long term loans
Less current maturity of loan term loans

Deferred liabilities -Staff Gratuity
- Taxation

Met assets

Gain on bargain purchase arising on the acquisition has been recognized as follows:

Consideration transferred
Fair value of previously held interest in Indus Home Limited

Fair value of net assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Gain on bargain purchase

Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiary
Consideration paid in cash

Cash acquired
Short term borrowings

Re-measurement of previously held interest in Indus Home Limited

Fair value on date of acquisition
Lass: Carmmying value on date of acquisition (note 5.4)

Gain on re-measurement of previously held interest

Previous investment in joint venture

Carrying amount as at July 01, 2013
Share of loss for the period from July 01, 2013 to November 21, 2013
Carrying amount on the date of acquisition

Provisional values

Fair value

mug:lzﬂd Carrying value
acquisition
Rupees in "000
324,980 324,980
306,259 306,259
328,063 235,768
82,549 82548
1,039,851 949 556
958,511 859,511
(306.,259) (306,259)
653,252 653,252
78,268 78,268
387 387
78,655 78,655
3,353,704 2,665,748
Rupees in "000
1,283,120
1,721,656
T 3014776
3,353,704
338,928
1,293,120
{6,578)
324 980

1,611,622

1,721,855
(1,332,599)

389,056

1,374,124

{41,525)
1,332,599

The Company is in the process to determine the fair values of the assets and liabilities of Indus Home Limited. Therefore, the
amounts reported for the fair values of the assets and liabilities are provisional and will be updated, if required, when the

process will be completed

In order to ensure early cash realisation and to expedite the exit process, the previous investor WestPoint Pakistan LLC sold
its interest in Indus Home Limited to the Holding Company at value considerably lower than the fair value net assets of the
subsidiary. As a result of the transaction executed at discounted terms, the Holding Company has recognized bargain

purchase gain amounting to Rs. 389.056 million (Refer note 5.3).
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7.2

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2014 2013 2014 2013
No. of shares Mote Rupees in "000

Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each

9,637,116 9,637,116  fully paid in cash 96,371 96,371
Other than cash:

5,282,087 5,282,097 Issued to the shareholders of YTML 6.1 52,81 52,821

3,154,518 3,154,519 Issued as bonus shares 31,545 31,545

18,073,732 18,073,732 180,737 180,737

These shares were issued pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation with Yousuf Textiie Mills Limited (YTML),
determined as at October 01, 2004, in acmrdann_e with the share-swap ratio.

Thera is no movement in issued, subscribed and paid-up capital during the year.
The Holding Company has only one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. The holders are
entitled 1o receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the

Holding Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Helding Company’s residual assets.

The Holding Company has no reserved shares for issuance under options and sales contracts.

2014 2013
Note Rupees in "000
RESERVES
Capital
Share premium 7.1 10,820 10,820
Merger reserve 7.2 11,512 11,512
22,432 22,432
Revenue
General reserve 5,000,000 5,000,000
Exchange translation resenve (32) .
§,022,400 5022 432

This represents share premium received in year 2001 in respect of the issue of 3,639,960 right shares at a premium of
Rs. 3/- per share.

Merger reserve represents excess of (a) assets of YTML over its liabilities merged with the Holding Company over (b)
consideration to shareholders of YTML as per the Scheme of Amalgamation {Refer note €.1)

2014 2013
Rupees in "000

LONG-TERM FINANCING

Secured
From banking companies 81&82 2,902,774 921,714
Less: Payable within one year {740,765) (231,345)
2,162,009 690,369
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The particulars of above long-term loans are as follows:

Type and nature of loan

Demand finance loans

Fixed assets finances

Termn finances

Long term financing - Export
orientad projects

Musharikah agreement

Type and nature of loan

Demand finance loans

Fixed assets finances

Term finances

Long Term Financing - Export

Oriented Projects

Musharakah Agreement

2014
i Sanctioned Mark up rate Terms of
Amount outstanding i per ANGUM PR
Rupees in '000
& month
3,176 117,942 KIBOR + 1.25% Half yearly
& month
s m i KIBOR + 1.26% el yearly
1,546,900 2,410,000 1 month Quarterly
KIBOR + 0.5 %
to 3 month
KIBOR + 1.5%
834,339 3,609,000 6% to 12.6% CQuarterly and
half yearly
3 month Quarterly
518,102 800,000 KIBOR + 1%
2,902,774 7,039,000
2013
Sanctioned Mark up rate Terms of
Amount outstanding gy i peranaum:  repayments
= Rupees in '000
& month
4,374 120,000 KIBOR + 1.25% Half yearly
& month
Ti2 2,058 KIBOR + 1.25% Half yearly
3 month
KIBOR + 1% to  Cuanerly
815,859 1,460,000 and
SEOAOE half yearly
KIBOR + 1.25%
43,211 120,000 6% to 9.7% Quarterly and
half yearly
3 month Quarterly
57.498 300,000 KIBOR + 1%
921,714 2,002,058

These finances are secured by charge over property, plant and equipment and land and bulldings of the Group.

There is no significant non compliance of the financing agreements with banking companies which may expose the

Group to penalties or early repayment.

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

The future minimum lease payments to which the Group is committed as at the balance sheet date are as follows:



2.1

10.

10.1

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.1.3

214 2013
Minimum Minimum
lease Present lsase Present
payments value payments value
Rupees in "000 Rupess in "000
Within one year - - 2,23 2,222
After cne year
but not more than five years - - - -
Total minimum lease payments - - 2231 2222
Less; Amount represanting
finance charges - - (9) -
Present value of
minimum lease payments - - 2,222 2222
Less: Current portion - - (2,222) (2,222)

These represent finance lease arrangement antered into with a financial institution for generator. During the year, the
Group has excersized the option to purchase tha leased asset.

2014 2013
MNote Rupees in "000
DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred taxation 101 1,461 -
Staff retirement gratuity:
- the Holding Company 10.2 140,757 112,239
- Indus Lyallpur Limited 10.3 10,307 5,897
- Indus Home Limited 10.4 80,642 -
233,167 118,236
Deferred taxation
The Holding Company

As the Holding Company's export sales were more than B0% of the total sales, management opted for the Income Tax
Circular No. 20 of 1992, according to which local sales of goods (manufactured) as well as waste material, not
constituting more than 20% of such production, may also be treated as export sales if the assessee opts to pay tax on
such sales at the rate applicable to export sales. As a result, management recognized the provision for taxation for local
sale at rate applicable to export sales. Consequently, no deferred tax has been recognised by the Company in respect
of assets and liabilities pertaining to income under Final Tax Regime.

Indus Lyallpur Limited - the Subsidiary Company

Management of the Subsidiary Company has restricted the benefit of deferred tax asset only to the extent of taxable
temporary differences amounting to Rs. 83904 million (2013: 83.404 million} and remaining net deferred tax asset of
Rs. 26.584 million (2013: Rs. 60.641 million) has not been recognized in the books. The taxable temporary differences
include temporary differences arising on fair value adjustments at the time of acquisition.

Indus Home Limited - the Subsidiary Company
The deferred tax liability recongized in these consolidated financial statements represents deferred tax liability in respect
of unrealized export debtors relating to Indus Home Limited. The income of the subsidiary falls under Final Tax Regime;

accordingly no deferred tax in respect of fair value adjustments of assets and liabilities has been recognized in these
consolidated financial statements.
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10.2 Staff retirement gratuity - the Holding Company

The Holding Company operates unfunded gratuity scheme for all its confirmed employees who have completed the
minimum qualifying period of service. Provision is made to cover obligations under the scheme on the basis of valuation
conducted by a qualified actuary. The last such valuation was conducted on June 30, 2014 using Projected Unit Credit
Method. Details assumptions used and the amounts charged in these consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Significant actuarial assumptions

2014 2013
Discount rate 13.25% 10.50%
Expected rate of increase in salary level 12.25% 9.50%
Average expected remaining working life of employees 6 years 6 years

Mortality rates assumed were based on the SLIC 2001-2005 mortality table.

The rates for withdrawal from service and retirement on ill-health grounds are based on industry / country experience.

2014 2013
(Restated)
Rupees in "000
Present value of defined benefit obligation 140,757 112,239
Movement In net defined liability
Balance at the beginning of the year 112,239 84 869
Recognized in profit and loss account
Current service cost 37,602 22 834
Interest cost 10,327 11,882
47,929 716
Recognized in other comprehensive income
8,370 13,923
Actuarial loss on remeasurement of obligation
Benefits paid (27,781) (21,269)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 2014 140,757 112,239
Actuarial gains and losses
Actuanal (gain) / losses from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Experience adjustments 8,370 13,823
8,370 13,823

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonable possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amount shown below;

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in

assumptions Increase Dacrease

(Rupees in "000) —--=---

Discount rate 1% (8,062) 8,336
Salary growth rate 1% 8818 (8,646)
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Staff retirement gratuity - Indus Lyallpur Limited

Significant actuarial assumptions

2014 2013
Discount rate 12% -
Expected rate of increase in salary level 11% 5

Mortality rates assumed were based on the SLIC 2001-2005 mortality table.

The rates for withdrawal from service and retirement on ill-health grounds are based on industry / country experience.

2014 2013
Rupees in "000

Present value of defined benefit obligation 10,307 5,997

Movement in net defined liability

Balance at the beginning of the year 5,997 :

Recognized in profit and loss account al

Current service cost 5613 -

Interest cost 720 6,186
6,333 6,186

Recognized in other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss on remeasurement of obligation {200) -

Benefits paid (1,823) (189)

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 2014 10,307 5997

Actuarial gains and losses

Actuarial (gain) / losses from changes in demographic assumptions -
Experience adjustments {200) -

{200) -

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonable possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amount shown below:

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Change in

assumptions Increase Decrease

-===--=- (Rupees in '000) ————
Discount rate 1% (531) 653
Salary growth rate 1% 653 (540)
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Staff retirement gratuity - Indus Homa Limited

Significant actuarial assumptions

2014 2013
Discount rate 13.25% 11.00%
Expected rate of increase in salary level 12.25% 10.00%
Average expected remaining working life of employees 7 years 6 years

Mortality rates assumed were based on the SLIC 2001-2005 mortality table.

The rates for withdrawal from service and retirement on ill-health grounds are based on industry / country experience.

2014 2013

Rupees in "000
Present value of defined benefit obligation 80,642 65,103
Movement in net defined liability
Balance at the beginning of the year 65,103 57,871
Recognized in profit and loss account
Current service cost 21,599 27557
Interest cost 6,075 7,523

27,674 35,080
Recognized in other comprehensive income
Actuarial loss on remeasurement of abligation 7.609 3,867
Benefits paid (19,744) {31,715)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 2014 80,642 85,103
Actuarial gains and losses
Actuarial (gain) f losses from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Experience adjustments 7,609 3,887

7,609 3,867

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonable possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amount shown below:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in

Increase Decrease
assumptions
amnen= [RUp@eS in '000) ---mnmmv
Discount rate 1% (5,026) 5,835
Salary growth rate 1% 8,106 (5,362)
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2014 2013
Note Rupees in '000
11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors i1.1 557,350 135,385
Accrued liabilities 277,289 301,781
Foreign bills payable 67,227 -
Infrastructure cess 1.2 190,609 143,891
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 1.3 62,273 133,317
Advance from customers 23,682 14,801
Due to directors and associate 5,385 -
Unclaimed dividend / dividend payable 27,17 54,130
Withhaolding tax payable 2,781 1,982
Unrealised loss on dervative financial instruments - 441
Others 137,051 52,442

1,350,504 838 134

114 This includes Rs. Nil (2013; Rs. 2.27 million) due to related parties.

1.2 It represents infrastructure cess payable to Excise and Taxation Officer (ETO) in respect of imported goods under the Sindh
Finance Ordinance 2001, In the year 2010-11, the High Court of Sindh has passed an interim order to return the bank
guarantees in respect of infrastructure cess payable on goods imported before December 28, 2008. Further the Honorable
Court has also ordered to pay off 50% of the infrastructure cess payable on goods imported on and after December 28,
2006 and to submit bank guarantees for balance 50%.

2014 2013
Note Rupees in '000
11.3 Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Balance at beginning of the year 133,317 73,398
Allocation for the year 62,273 133,317
Interest charged during the year on
the funds utilized by the Group 33 5,329 5648
200,918 212,363
Payments made during the year {138,648) 79,046
Balance at end of the year 62,273 133,317
12, INTEREST / MARK-UP PAYABLE
On secured loans from banking companies
- Long-term financing 84,304 19,180
- Short-term borrowings 40,656 12,020
124,960 31,200
13. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
From banking companies - secured
Running finance / cash finance arrangements 13.1 675,182 1,001,568
Finance against import / export 13.2 4,335,864 836,454
13.3 5,011,046 1,838,022
From related parties - unsecured
Directors and their spouses 134 - 9,490
5,011,046 1,847,512
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14.

14.1

1411

14.1.2

14.1.3

14.1.4

14.2

15.

These carry mark-up ranging from 3 month KIBOR + 0.15% to 1 month KIBOR + 2.00% (2013: 1 month KIBOR + 0.5% to 3
month KIBOR + 1%). These are secured against charge over current assets of the Group,

These carry mark-up ranging from 1 month LIBOR + 0.4% to 1 month LIBOR + 2.5% (2013: 1 month LIBOR + 0.5% to 1
month LIBOR + 1.1%) on foreign currency borrowing amounts. These arrangements are secured against charge over
cument assets of the Group and lien on import and export documents.

The Group has aggregate short-term borrowing facilities amounting to Rs. 14,848 million {2013: Rs. 9,074 million) from
various commercial banks. These are secured against current assets with upto 25% margin.

These are interest free and are payable within one year.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

2014 2013
Contingencies Rupees in "000
Claim of arrears of social security contribution not acknowledged, appeal is pending in
honorable High Court of Sindh. The management is hopeful for favorable outcome.
453 453
Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Group 49,820 449,820
Guarantees issued by banks in favour of aas distribution companies 114,227 37,586
Bank guarantees against payment of infrastructure cess 144,695 103,042
Commitments
Letters of credit against property, plant and equipment,
stores and spares and raw cotton purchases 753,013 1,635 029
Civil work contracts 70,000 176,350
Foreign currency forward contracts B03,586 99 660
2014 2013
Nate Rupees in '000
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 15.1 10,812,951 5,371,700
Capital work-in-progress 15.3 103,388 98,859
10,916,339 5,470,659
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16.2

16.21

16.2.2
16.2.3

17.

18.

18.1

2014 2013

Note Rupees in '000
Investment in assoclate
- Sunrays Textile Mills Limited
Cost 1,716 42,382
Share of post acquisition profits
Opening 20,465 361,226
Dividend received ’ (1,025) (18,326)
Share of revaluation of property, plant and equipment - 2,610
Share of surplus on property, plant and equipment on account
of incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax 245 1,489
Share of profit from associate for the year 2,796 74,108
Share of post acquisition profits distributed as specie dividend - (400,623)

22,482 20,485

Cost of shares distributed as specie dividend . {40.666)

16.2.1 24,198 22,181
Number of shares held 68,654 68,654
Ownership interest 0.99% 0.99%
Market value (Rupees in '000) 16,651 13.319
Cost of investment {(Rupees in '000) 1,716 1,716

The principal business of the Company is to manufacture and sale of yarn. The registered office of Sunrays Textile Mills
Limited is located in Karachi and the place of business is located at District Muzaffargarh, Dera Ghazi Khan Division, in the

province of Punjab.

Due to common directorship, the investment has been classified as investment in associates.

Summarized financial highlights as at and for the period ended June 30 are as follows:

2014 2013
Note Rupees in '000

Total assets 3,572,356 2673897
Total liabilities 1,164,054 444 589
Revenue 4,731,619 4,385,980
Profit for the year 282 460 531,267
LONG-TERM DEPOSITS
Electricity 11,118 3,754
Others 4,220 1,285

15,338 5,039
STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores, spares and loose tools 18.1 616,408 232 354
Less: provision for slow moving and obsclete stock {29,655) (1,000)

586,753 231,354 -

It include stores and spares in transit amounting to Rs. 60.96 million (2013: Rs 12.746 million).
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19.

20.

201
20.2

20.3

STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material
-in hand
- in transit

Work-in-process
Finished goods
Packing material
Vaste

TRADE DEBTS
Considered good
Secured

Foreign debtors
Local debtors

Unsecured
Foreign debtors
Local debtors

Considered doubtful

Less: provision for doubtful debts

Note

These are secured against letters of credit in favour of the Group.

This includes balances from the following related parties which are not past due:

Indus Home Limited

Sunrays Textile Mills Limited (Associate)

Movement of provision

Opening balance
Charge for the year
Reversal

Closing balance

93

20.1

202

203

204

2014 2013
Rupees in "000
3,603,313 3,316,147
163,490 137,503
3,766,803 3,453,740
783,693 234 485
1,020,058 234,809
47,512 37,982
88,697 68,008
5,712,763 4,027 035
e
1,335,957 505,109
16,453 401,562
1,352,410 906,671
1“5.“‘0 =
498,544 222,451
1,854,394 1,128,122
5,230 8,39
1,959,624 1,137,551
(5,230) (8,39
1,954,394 1,128,112
2014 2013
Rupees in "000
- 13,2
- 13.26
2014 2013
Rupees in "000
8,393 3.4
- 4.9
(3.163) -
5,230 8,39]




20.4

2.

211

2114

Trade debts consist of a large number of customers, spread across geographical areas. Ongoing credit evaluation
is performed on the financial condition of credit customers.

2014 2013
Rupees in '000
Considered good
Loans to staff 14,908 9,508
Advance income tax - net 21.1 218,211 63,918
Advances to:
- Suppliers 40,827 29,2585
- Others 11,691 11,570
52,518 40,825
285,637 114,251
Advance income tax - net i
Advance income tax 258,001 300,852
Less: Provision for taxation - (138,063)
Lass: Workers' Welfare Fund 2111 {39,730) (88,871)

218,211 63,918

Prior to certain amendments made through the Finance Acts of 2006 & 2008, Worker Welfare Fund (WWF) was
levied at 2% of the total income assessable under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 excluding incomes falling
under the Final Tax Regime (FTR). Through Finance Act, 2008, an amendment was made in Section 4(5) of the
WWF Ordinance, 1971 {the Ordinance) whereby WWF liability is applicable at 2% of the higher of the profit before
taxation as per the accounts or declared income as per the return.

Aggrieved by the amendments made through the Finance Act, certain stakeholders filed petition against the
changes in the Lahore High Court which struck down the aforementioned amendments to the WWF Ordinance in
2011. However, the Holding Company together with other stakeholders also filed the petition in the Sindh High
Court which, in 2013, decided the petition against the Holding Company and other stakeholders. Management has
filed a petition before the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the decision of the Sindh High Court. On prudent
basis, the Group has recognized aggregate provision amounting to Rs.144.482 million for the years from 2010 to
2014, although management based on advice of the legal advisor is confident that the ultimate decision would be
in favor of the Group.

2014 2013
: Note Rupess in ‘000
TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Considered good
Security deposits:
- Lease - g7g
- Others 683 -
Prepayments 4,103 6,805
4,786 7.784
2014 2013
Note Rupees in '000
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good
Cotton claims 14,233 14.241
Rebate refundable 58,945 -
Others 20,524 12,123
93,702 26,364




24,

241

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

At fair value through profit and loss - held for trading

Investment in ordinary shares of listed companies
Investment in units of mutual funds

Derivative financial assat

Market value of other financial assets

2014 2013

Mo. of shares / units

Investment In ordinary shares of listed companies

30,000 30,000
11,088 1,728
60,500 185
100,000 -

Investment in units of mutual funds

1,884 7,904
236 7,000
8,533 100,000
1,247,292 60,500
3,029 2811
TAX REFUNDABLE
Sales tax refundable
Income tax refundable
Others
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
With banks
- in deposit accounts

- in current accounts

Cash in hand

24.1
241

Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited
Pakistan State Qil Company Limited

United Bank Limited

Pakistan International Airlines
Corporation Limited

HBEL Money Market Fund

Meezan Sovereign Fund

NAFA Government Security Liquid Fund
Askari Sovereign Cash Fund

LIBL Liguidity Plus Fund

95

Note

Note

26.1

18,536 12,880
126,027 584
18,660 -
164,223 13,464
2014 2012
Rupeas in '000
3,367 3,223
4,312 2,243
10,198 6,508
659 a08
18,536 12,880
189 175
12 48
86 79
125,436 -
a4 282
126,027 584
144,563 13,464
2014 2013
Rupees in '000
208,807 a7.316
219,296 44 440
1,160 1,160
429,263 132,916
2014 2013
Rupees in "000
. 7676
78,531 131,481
78,531 139,157
6,109 5,082
84,640 144 2389




27.

This includes term deposit receipts amounting to Rs. Nil {2013: Rs. 7.67 million).

2014 2013
Note Rupees in "000
SALES - net
Export sales 27T1&272 20,247,300 16,673,832
Less: Commission {207,563) (291,832)
20,039,737 16,381,800
Local sales
Yarn 3,848,431 3,476,108
Waste 360,442 287 441
4,208,873 3,763,548
Less:
Sales tax @ 2% on local sales 154,680 81,277
Brokerage 59,505 61,875
{214,185) (123,152)
24,034,425 20,022,197

It include exchange loss of Rs. 19.6 million (2013: exchange gain of Rs. 10.21 million) and indirect export of Rs. 3,432 million
(2013: Rs. 3,542 38 million).

It include indirect exports to related undertakings of Rs. Nil (2013: Rs. 167 61 million).

2014 2013
(Restated)
Note Rupees in '000
COST OF GOODS SOLD
Raw material consumed 28.1 17,985,349 13,329,158
Manufacturing expenses 28.2 5,259,729 3,029,291
Outside purchases - yarn (335,465) 18,530
22,909,613 16,377,979
Work in process .
- Opening 234,485 213,918
- Closing (789,693) (234,495)
(555,198) (20,579)
Cost of goods manufactured 22,354,415 16,357 400
Finished goods -
- Opening 300,818 334 528
- Closing (1,108,755) (300,818)
(B807,937) 34 110
21,546,478 16,391,510




28.2

28.21

29,

291

Raw material consumed

Opening stock
Purchases

Cost of raw cofton sold
Closing stock

Manufacturing expenses

Salaries, wages and benefils
Fuel, water and power
Packing material consumed
Stores and spares consumed
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance

Rent, rates and taxes

Depreciation on operating fixed assets

Other

It includes staff retirement benefits Rs. 65.831 million (2013: Rs. 50.417 million).

OTHER INCOME

Gross profit on trading of raw cotton

Other income

Gross profit on trading of raw cotton

Sales
- Export
- Local

Less: Cost of goods sold

- Export
- Local
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28.2.1

15.1.1

Note

29.1
29.2

2014 2013

Rupees In "000
3,316,147 1,585,691
18,459,297 15,132,633
21,775,444 16,718,224
(186,782) (72,919)
{3,603,313) (3,316,147)
17,985,349 13,320,158
1,192,385 TBE.3TT
1,933,356 982,929
456,125 290,949
747,610 405,648
&7 1M 29,716
53,882 27,161
2,538 2167
762,428 467,557
54,234 37,787
5,269,729 3,029,291
2014 2013
Rupees in "000
4,498 8,310
217,834 14,085
222332 22 385
- 71,549
191,280 8,680
191,280 81,228
- {83,348)
{186,782) {9,571)
(186,782) {(72,919)
4,458 8,310




29.2

3.

Other income

Income from non-financial assets:
Scrap sale
Storage income

Reversal of provision for cbsolescence
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets

Note
Income from financial assets:
Gain on disposal of other financial assets
Unrealised gain on other financial assets
Dividend income
Profit on fixed deposits
Unrealised gain on revaluation of foreign currency loans

DISTRIBUTION COST

Export

Ocean freight

Export development surcharge
Other export charges

Local freight

Salaries and wages
Commission

Travelling and conveyance
Telephone and postage
Insurance

Other

Note

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 311
Director's remuneration
Meeting fees

Repairs and maintenance
Postage and telephone
Traveling and conveyance
Vehicles running

Printing and stationery
Rent, rates and taxes
Utilities

Entertainment

Fees and subscription
Insurance

Legal and professional

Charity and donations 32
Auditors' remuneration 31.3
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 15.1.1
Provision for doubtful debts

Advertisement

Others

7,017 6,163
- 416
13,829 2,486
1,196
2014 2013
Rupees in "000
- 3,027
26,374 1,114
1,151 879
1,715 =
166,552 -
217,834 14,085
164,106 131,173
35,291 32,714
236,778 174,160 |
436,175 338,056
80,502 77,168
19,580 =
30,006 -
65,456 =
5,195 =
14,888 13,302
13,531 2,168
606,333 430,696
2014 2013
{Restated)
Rupees in "000
88,285 51,208
51,839 45,160
234 278
4,270 3,267
9,464 7,585
14,526 10,312
9,369 10,850
6,142 5,786
13,325 8,270
12,995 8,399
3,716 2,184
11,125 5955
7,858 3,768
6,727 3,870
2,993 1,243
2,830 2418
39,345 23,827
- 4,200
1,417 1,367
14,797 7,459
301,257 208,304




A It includes staff retirement benefits Rs.16.105 million {2013: Rs.4.41 million),

.2 Mone of the directors and their spouses have any interest in the donees fund.
2014 2013
Rupees in "000
N3 Auditors’ remuneration
Indus Home Limited
{Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder)
Audit fee 450 -
Out of pocket expenses 119 -
569 -
Indus Dyeing & Manufacturing Company Limited and Indus
Lyallpur Limited (M.Yousuf Adil Saleem & Co.)
Audit fee 1,600 1,543
Half year limited review fee 300 298
Fee for cerifications and other 280 252
Out of pocket expenses 81 165
2,261 2258
32 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 62,273 133,317
Workers' Welfare Fund 26,800 126,761
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 5,100 -
Exchange loss on foreign cumency forward contracts < 20,524
Exchange loss on foreign currency transactions - 441
Unrealised loss on derivative financial instrument 11,267 -
105,440 281,043
33 FINANCE COST
Mark-up on:
- long-term finance 249,698 110,142
- liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 3z 415
- short-term borrowings 230,181 215,378
Discounting charges on letters of credit 11,502 1,385
Interest on Workers' Profit Participation Fund 5,233 5,648
Bank charges and commission 23,431 10,158
520,077 343,138
2014 2013
(Restated)
Rupees in "000
34. TAXATION
Current 25,337 144 68
Prior (157,014) (6,626
Deferred 1,461 (162,414
{130,216) (24,351




Reconciliation between accounting profit and taxable income

Accounting profit before tax 1,866,427 2,523,383
Tax rate % 4% 35%
Tax on accounting profit 634,585 883,184
Effect of:

Income chargeable to tax at reduced rates 475,850 28,993
Prior year charge {157,014) (6,626)
Income that is not taxable in determining tax liability (234,347) (46,718)
Tax impact of tax credit (214,705) -
Tax charge for the yéar as per accounts {130,218) (24,351}

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Group, which is based on:

2014 2013
{Restated)
Profit for the year Rupees in "000 1,996,642 2,547 734
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year MNo. of gshares 18,073,732 18,073,732

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) Rupees 110.47 140.96




36.

7.

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Provigion for gratuity
(Reversal)/ provision for doubtful debts

1811
10.2-104
20

Unrealised (gain) / loss on other financial assets 29.2
Unrealised gain on revaluation of foreign currency loan
Unreslised loss on derivative financial instrument az

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets
Gain from bargain purchase

Gain on remeasurement of previously held interest in IHL

Dividend income

Share of profit from associate

Share of loss/ (profit) from joint venture
Loss on distribution of specie dividend
Finance cost

Cash generated before working capital changes
Working capital changes:

{Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose lools
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in current liability
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Short-term borrowings

18.2
161

a3

26
13

101

2014 2013
{Restated)
Rupees in "000

1,866,427 2,523,383
B01,773 491,384
81,936 40,902
(2,163) 4,900
(26,374) (3,027)
(166,552) -
11,267 441
{1,1986) (2,486)
(338,928) -
(389,056) -
(1,151) (1.114)
{2,7986) (74,108)
41,525 (61,468)

- 2,008

520,077 343,136
2,393,788 3,264,039
(115,181} (45,806)
(826,147) (1,123,809)
(773,645) (299,595)
(215,058) 52,204
2,998 (5,421
152,112 (13,286
(1,774,899) (1,435,713
202,352 217,474
821,243 2,045 800
B4,640 144,239
(5,011,0458) (1,838,022
{4,926,4086) (1,693,783




as. REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND DIRECTORS
The aggregate amounts charged in the accounts for remuneration, including all benefils to chief executive officer and directors of the Group

are given below:
2014
Particulars Chief Executive Directors Executives Total
Officer Executive Non-Executive
Rupees in "000
Remuneration
including benefits 24 285 23,480 12,600 78,002 138,457
Medical 580 T30 - 1,920 3,230
Utilities a04 1.094 - 735 2,733
Travelling 341 - - 4,364 7,795
Vehicle running 300 - - 2977 3277
Retirement benefits - - - 12,564 12,564
Bonus and others - - - 64,152 64,152
Meeting fee 40 : 120 74 - 234
Total 29,540 25,424 12,674 164,804 232,442
Number of persons 2 -] 5 75
2013
Particulars Chief Executive Directors il Executives Total
Officer Executive Non-Executive
Rupees in "000
Remuneration 6,480 34,164 - 17 547 58,191
Utilities 549 951 - - 1,500
House rent T20 3,796 - 1,755 6,271
Retirement benefits - - - 10,856 10,856
Meeting fees 38 153 63 24 278
Total 7,787 39,064 63 30,182 77,096
Number of persons 1 6 3 25 as
381 Group maintained cars and cellular phones are provided to Chief Executive Officer and directors,
39. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of an associale (Sunrays Textiles Mills Limited), enliies with commeon directorship, key management personnel
and post employment benefit scheme. The Group camies out transaclions with relaled parties on agreed terms. Short-lerm loan obtained
from directors are disclosed in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. Remuneration of key management personnel is disclosed in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements and amount due in respect of staff retirement benefits is disclosed in note 10.3. Other

significant iransactions with related parties are as follows:

2014 2013
Relaticnship Nature of transactions Rupees in '000
Associate Sale of yarn 753,768 -
Purchase of yarn 12,871 12,285
Processing charges T.255
Quality claims 5,501 -
Joint Venture Sale of yarn - 234 785
Contract manufacturing cost - 10,302
Purchase ol generator . 4.000
Purchase of cotion - 1,208
Rental income = =
Directors Armount pakd 185,377 113,248
Amount receved 151,263 117,515
Other related parties |
comman directorship)
Godown Rent 478 -
Expenses adjusted / reimbursed 5 1,879
2014 2013
Relationship Nature of transactions Rupees in '000
Balances with related parties:
Associate - payable 127 627
Joint Veniure - receivable - 13,205
Directors and their spouses - payable - 9,480
Directors and their spouses - receivable 5376 -
Other related parties- Duea bo common directorship:
- Receivable - 58
- Payabla 3170 2,641
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors has cverall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's financial risk management. The
responsibility includes developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies. To assist the Board in discharging its oversight
rasponsibility, management has been mede responsible for identifying, monitaring and managing the Group's financial risk sxposures.

The Group's principal financial liabilities, comprise long-term financing, shorn-term borrowings, labiilies against assats subject lo finan
lease, trade and other payables and financial guaranies contracts. The main purpose of these financial liabilities |5 to ralse financa for
Group's operalions. The Group has loans and advances, irade and other receivables, cash and bank balances and short-term depasits that
arrive directly from its oparations. The Group also holds long-term and short term investments, and enters into derivative transactions.

The Group's activities expose {t to a varisty of financial risks: markel risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow
interest rale risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity rigk.

The Group's exposure to the risks associated with the financial instruments and the risk management policies and
procedures are summarised as follows.

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Cradil risk is the risk that cna party to a financial instrument will fall to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial
loss, without taking Into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties ara
engaged In simllar business aclivities or have similar economic features that would causa their ability 1o meel contractual obligations o be
similarly affected by changes in economic, polilical or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sansitivity of tha
Group's performanca lo developments affecting a particular industry. The Group's does not have any significant exposure lo customers from
any single country or single customer,

Credit risk of the Group arises principally from the long-lerm investments, Irade debts, loans and advances, and bank balancas. The carrying
amount of financial assets represents the maximum credil exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2014 2013
Rupees in '000
Long-term deposits 15,338 5,039
Trade debts 1,954,394 1129122
Loans to staff 14,908 8,508
Trade deposits 683 a7g
Other receivables 93,702 26,364
Bank balances 78,531 139,157
2,157 556 1,310,163

Trade debls are due from foreign and local cuslomers for exporl and local sales respeclively. Trade debts from foreign customers ar
secured against lefters of credit. Management assesses the credit quality of local and foreign customers, laking into account their financia
position, past experience and other factors. As at the balance sheet dale, there are no past due trade debt balances.

Credit risk related to equity investments and cash deposits

The Group limils its exposure to credit risk of investments by only investing in listed securties of highly reputed Companies having go
stock exchange rating. Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by Finance Director in accordance with th

Group's policy.
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40.2.1

The credit risk on liquid funds (cash and bank balances) is limited because the counter parties are banks with a reasonably high
credit rating the names and credit rating of major banks where the Company maintains its bank balances are as follows:

Rating Credit rating
Name of bank agency Long-term Short-term
Allied Bank Limited PACRA Ab+ A+
Askari Commercial Bank Limited PACRA Ay Al+
Bank Al-Habib Limited PACRA AA+ Al+
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA AA A+
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited PACRA A Al
Barclays Bank Moody's A2- P-1
Dubai Islamic Bank (Pakistan) Limited JCR-VIS A Al
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA AA Al+
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS AANL Al+
Habib Metro Bank Limited PACRA Al Al+
Industrial and Commercial Bark of China Moody's Al P-1
J.5. Bank Limited PACRA A+ Al
KASE Bank Limited PACRA BEB Al
Meezan Bank Limited JCR-WIS AR Al+
MCE Bank Limited PACRA, ALA A+
Mational Bank of Pakistan JCR-VIS AR Al+
Soneri Bank Limiled PACRA Ad- Al+
Standard Chartered Bank Pakistan Limited PACRA Al Al+
The Bank of Punjab Limited PACRA AR Al+
United Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al Al+
Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting cbligations associated with financial liabilities that are
settied by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Group could be required
to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or would have difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial
liabilities as they fall due. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to mest its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Group's reputation. The Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meat expected working
capital requirements (refer note 13). Following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments and
excluding the impact of netting agreements:

Liquidity and interest risk table

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay.

Carrying Values Contractual (Less than 1 month 1 to 3 mor 3 montht1 - 5 years

--------------------- Rupeesin'000' ---------------=-"---

Trade and alher payablas 1,071,550 1,071,558 1,071,559
Lomg-lanm financing 2802774 3,369,545 3 485 10,214 a7s 131 2481018
Short-serm barmawings 5,011,046 5,076,318 1,721,453 3 e07 233258
Intareat | mark-up payabla 124,560 124,960 122,508 2452 = =
014 9,110,335 B 642,783 2,819,005 3134273 1,108,389 2,481 016
Trade and other payables 544 163 544,163 i 544,163 - =
Long-larm financng 521,714 927374 2,529 45,267 182,549 555,029
Liahililies against aesets

subject 1o finance laase 2,25 2,522 - 2222
Shari-lam borrowings 1,847,512 2,332 978 1,967 962 - 275,014
interes! { mark-up payatie 31,200 31,200 31,200 . <
13 336811 3,737,935 2535854 48 485 A5T 563 GE5,028

The effective rate of interests on non derivative financial liabilities are disclosed in respective notes.
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The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates at the balance shest dates are as
follows:

2014 2013
Rupees in "000

6 months or less

- Short-term borrowings 5,011,046 1,847,512
- Long-term loans 2,880,390 878,503
- Liabiliies against assets subject to finance lease - 2,222

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the
Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and contral
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimising retums.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Majority of the interest rate risk arises from long and short-term borrowings from financial insfitutions. At the balance sheet
date the interest rate risk profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments is:

Carrying amount
2014

Rupess in '000
Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets -
Financial liabilities 975,137

Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities

- KIBOR based 3,495,787 1,882,293
- LIBOR based 3,442,896 836,454

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities. Therafore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date
would not affect profit and loss account.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constanl, the Group's profit before lax for the
year ended June 30, 2014 would decrease / increase by Rs. 29.808 milion (2012: Rs. 13.59 million). This is mainly attributable to the
Group's exposure o interest rales on its variable rate borrowings determined on outstanding balance at year end.
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40.3.2

40.3.3

40.4

Foreign exchange risk management

Exposure to currency risk
2014 2013

Rupees Us Dollar Rupees US Dollar
Trade debts 1,296,776 13,156 505,100 5112
Foreign currency loans 3,442,896 34,928 836,454 B 466

4,739,672 48,084 1,341,563 13,578

2014 2013
Rupees

Average rate 102.89 9572
Balance sheet date rate 98.57 08.80

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered
into foreign currencies. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings, which, are
entered in a currency other than Pak Rupees. The Group enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover its
exposure to foreign currency sales and receivables.

At June 30, 2014, if the Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the US dollar with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs. 124.667 million (2013: Rs. 16.57 million) determined on
the outstanding balance at year end. Profit / (loss) is more sensitive to movement in Rupee / foreign cumency exchange
rates in 2014 than 2013 because of high fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rate.

Equity price risk management

The Group's listed securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the
investment securities. The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual and
total equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the Group's senior management on a regular
basis. The Group's Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has exposure of Rs. 19.84 million (2013: Rs. 19.64 million) to listed equity securities
of an associate which is held for strategic rather than trading purpose. The Group does not actively trade these securities.

At the balance sheet date, the Company have exposure of Rs. 3,576 million {2013: Rs. 990 million) to unlisted equity
securities of subsidiaries which are held for strategic rather than trading purpose.

At the balance sheet date, the exposure to listed equity securities at fair value was Rs. 144.56 million (2013: Rs. 13.46
million). A decrease / increase of 5% on the KSE market index would have an impact of approximately Rs. 7.23 million
{2013: Rs. 0.67 million) determined based on market value of investment at year end.

Determination of fair values :

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settied, between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arms length transaction other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.
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Financial instruments by category

Assets as per balance sheet
- June 30, 2014

Long-term deposits
Trade debts

Loans

Trade deposits

Other receivables
Other financial assets
Bank balances

Assets as per balance sheet

-June 30, 2013

Long-term deposits
Long-term investments
Trade debts

Loans

Trade deposits

Other receivables
Other financial assets
Bank balances

Liabilities as per balance sheet
-June 30, 2014

Long-term financing
Trade and other payables
Short-term borrowings
Interest / mark-up payable

Liabilities as per balance sheet
- June 30, 2013

Long-term financing
Trade and other payables
Short-term borrowings
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease
Interest / mark-up payable
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Fair value through Total
Loan & advances profit & loss
mmmm s Rupeesin'000-------------
15,338 - 15,338
1,954,394 - 1,954 394
14,908 - 14,908
E83 - 683
83,702 - 493,702
- 164,223 164,223
84,640 - 84,640
2,163,665 164,223 2,327,388
5039 5,039
1,129,122 - 1128122
9,508 - 8508
a7 - T
26,364 - 26,364
- 13,464 13,464
144 239 - 144 239
1,315,251 13,464 1,328,715
Financial liabilities
measured at
amortized cost Total

Rupees in "000
2,902,774 2,902,774
1,071,559 1,071,559
5,011,046 5,011,046
124,960 124,960
9,110,339 9,110,339
821,714 921,714
544 163 544 163
1,847 512 1,847 512
2222 2222
31,200 31,200
3,346,811 3,346 811




——

40.6 Fair value hierarchy
The fair values of the financial instruments have been analysed in various fair value levels as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities.

LBWoR 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

Level 3:
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
i sesssssscssssssmmsss====== Rupeesin'000 -------- sesssssssmsmana
Other financial assets 164,223 19,660 - 183,883
Other financial liability » - - -
Total 164,223 18,660 - 183,883

41. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Company when managing capital, i.e., its shareholders' equity is to safeguard its ability to continue as
a going concern so that it can continue to provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to
maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its businesses.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring retum on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividend paid to shareholders or issue new shares.

Consistent with others in the indusiry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the geanng ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-current
borrowings' as shown in the balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown
in the balance sheet plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at June 30, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

2014 2013
Rupees in "000
Total borrowings (note 8,9 & 13) 7,913,820 2,771,448
Less: cash and bank balances (note 26) (84,640) (144,238)
Net debt 7,829,180 2,627,209
Total equity 10,646,575 8,936,904
Total capital 18,475,755 11,564,113
Gearing ratio 42% 23%
42. CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

Spinning units 2014 2013
Total number of spindies installed 197,672 171.072
Total number of spindies worked per annum (average) 190,028 162,603
Number of shifts worked per day 3 3
Installed capacity of yam converted into
20 counts based on 365 days (Ibs.) 134,046,800 128,046 015
Actual production for the year after conversion into 20 counts (lbs.) 134,317,644 116,610,778
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Ginning units 2014 2013

Installed capadcity to produce cotton bales 135,000 135,000
Actual production of cotton bales 19,723 19,108
Number of shifts 2 7
Capacity attaingd in (%) 14.61% 14.15%
The reason for shortfall in the production of cotton bales is limited availability of raw cotton.
Waaving unit
2014 2013
LoS Lbs
Normal capacity - Weaving 40,953,000 -
Actual Froduction - Weaving 19.377.882 -
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The total average number of employees during the year as at June 30 are as follows.
MNo. of employees
2014 2013
Average number of employees dunng the year 2,343 2,654
Number of employees as at 30 June 2014 4,384 26682

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group's core business is manufacturing and sale of yarn and it generates more than 90% of its revenue and profit

from the production and sale of yarn. Decision making process is centralized at head office lead by Chief Executive Officer
who continuously involves in day to day operations and regularly reviews operating results and assesses its performance
and makes necessary decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments. Cumrently the Group has five yarn

manufacturing units at Hyderabad, Karachi, Muzafargarh, Faisalabad and Lahore. Owing to the similarity in nature of the
products and services, nature of the production processes, type or class of customers for the products and services, the

methods used to distribute the products and the nature of the regulatory environment, all the yarn producing units are

aggregated into a single operating segment and the Group's performance is evaluated by the management on an overall

basis, therefore these operational segments by location are not separately reportable segments. The Group also has two

ginning units including one on leasing arrangement in District Multan. The Group also holds investments in equity shares of
listed companies, long-term strategic investments in an associated company results of which are disclosed in
note 16.1 and note 16.2 to these consolidated financial statment.
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45, DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
| These consolidated financial statements have been authorised for issue on October 03, 2014 by the Board of Directors of
the Group.
46, GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

Shahzad Ahmed Naveed Ahmed
Chief Executive Director
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FORM OF PROXY

57t Annual General Meeting

INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED

[/ W@ eecceeemomsecoessecannssenassanaaaansmaa s m s oo s eeeasssssssssssssssasssssssssssessmsssneses
R - e e D T PP in
the district of Being a member (s) of INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING COMPANY
LIMITED hereby appoint of

Qs my proxy, and failing him, of
--—-———-—— another Member of the Company to vote for me and on my behalf at the 57" Annual
General Meeting of the company to be held on the 29 day of October 2014 and at my-

adjournment thereof.

Signed by the said Member
Signed this day of 2014,
SIGNED IN THE PRESENCE OF :
1.Signature : 2. Signature:
Name:-—-- Name:
Address:: Address:
CHNIC/Passport No CHNIC/Passport Noi—————e——

For

Information required; For Member For Proxy alternate
(Shareholder) Proxy(*)
Number of shares held (if member) (*) upon failing
f appointed
Folio No. = i
o= Affix
coC Participant I.D.
St:cc:uni Account no. Revenue
o.
proxy. . Stamp Rs.
3f-
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Notes:

1.

A member enfitled to attend and vote at Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy o attend and vote instead of him/her. A proxy need not be a member.

This proxy Form, duly completed and signed, together with Board Resclution / power of
Attormey. if any under which it is signed or a notarially cerified copy thereolf, should be
deposited, with our Registrar, Corporate Support Service Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd. 407-408, Al
Ammera Centre Sharah Iraq. Saddar Karachi. Telephone No. 35662023-24, not later than 48
hours before the time of holding the meeting.

The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or his/her attorney duly
authorized in writing. If the member is a corporate entity its common seal should be affixed on
the instrument.

Any alteration made in this instrument of proxy should be initialed by the person who signs it.

Attested copies CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owner and proxy shall be provided
with.the proxy from.

If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than cne instruments of proxies are
deposited by a member with the company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered
invalid.

In the case of joint holders the vote of the senior who tenders a vote whether in person or by
proxy will be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders, and for this
purpose seniority will be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register for
Members.

The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC passport at the time of the meeting.

r T =Tz == s —— S —— I
AFFIX
CORRECT
I POSTAGE |
I The company Secretary |
INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING CO. LTD.
Plot No, 3 & 7. Sector No. 25, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi
I 1
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DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

Members of Indus Dyeing & Manufacturing Company Limited
Subject: Dividend Mandate Form

It is inform you that under section 250 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 a shareholder may, if so
desire, directs the Company to pay dividend through his / her / its bank account.

In pursuance of the directions given by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan from
time to time relating to the subject you being the registered shareholder of Indus Dyeing & Mfg. Co.
Ltd. Are herby given the opportunity to authorize the Company to directly credit into your bank
account cash dividend, if any, declared by the Company in future.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS DIVIDEND MANDATE IS OPTIONAL AND NOT COMPULSORY, IN
CASE YOU DO NOT WISH YOUR DIVIDEND TO BE DIRECTLY CREDITED INTO YOUR BANK
ACCOUNT THEN THE SAME SHALL BE PAID TO YOU THROUGH THE DIVIDEND WARRANTS.

Do you wish the cash dividend declared by the company, if any, is directly credited in your bank
account, instead of issue of dividend warrants. Please tick " »™ any of the following boxes:

LYES | | NO |

If yes, then please provide the following information.

(i) Shareholder's Detail

Name of the Shareholder

Folio No.f CDC Participants | D Ale
No.

CHIC NO.

Passport MNo. (in case of foreign
shareholder)*™

Land Line Phone Number

Cell Number

(i) Shareholder's Bank Detail

Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Bank's Mame

Branch Name and Address

The company is hereby authorized to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if any, from time to
time, in the above-mentioned bank account.

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct, and that | will intimate the changes in the

above-mentioned information to the company and the concerned Share Registrar as soon as they
oceur,

Date:

Signature of the Shareholder

Note:
= The shareholders who hold shares in physical form are requested to submit this Dividend
Mandate Form duly filled-in to the Share Registrar concerned.
¢ Sharehclders maintaining their shareholdings under Central Depository System (CDS) are
advised to submit this form directly to relevant Participant/ CDC Investor Account Service.
+ Please attach attested photocopy of the CNIC / passport (in case of Foreign Shareholder).
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AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

The company Secretary
INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING CO. LTD.

Plot Mo. 3 & 7, Sector No. 25, Keorangi Industrial Area, Karachi
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AWARDED TO

M/S INDUS DYEING & MANUFACTURING CO LIMITED
KARACHI

FOR EXPORT OF COTTON YARN




